
Agenda 05.20.2024 
Page 1 

Watch Live via YouTube at: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 
Pursuant to Ordinance #08-17, Any citizen of the County may sign to 
speak in person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 
Regular Meeting start time) on the Public Comments Sign in Sheet on 
the Podium to address Council on matters pertaining to County 
Services and Operations. Presentations will be limited to three (3) 
minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.  
Written Public Comments may also be submitted by 1PM on the date 
of the Council Meeting by emailing your comment to: 
comments@jaspercountysc.gov.  

To participate in a Public Hearing for a specific agenda item, you may 
either email written public comments to 
comments@jaspercountysc.gov by 1:00PM on Monday, May 20, 2024; 
or you can speak in person at the Council Meeting by signing in on the 
Public Hearing Sign In Sheet located outside the Council Chambers 
Doors prior to the start of the meeting. Public Hearing Comments shall 
be limited to 3 minutes per person. 

Instructions may also be found at the Jas 
per County website www.jaspercountysc.gov 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CALL (843) 717-3696 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


Agenda 05.20.2024 
Page 2 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg. 
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936  

    Monday, May 20, 2024 

4:00PM 
Budget Workshop: 

Jasper First Steps – Duchette Polite Hylton 
Technical College of the Lowcountry – Dr. Richard Gough, President  
Hardeeville Marine Rescue Squad – Patricia Davis 
Jasper County Sheriff’s Department – Sheriff Hipp 
Coastal Empire Community Mental Health – Judith L. Birchenough 

Regular Council Meeting and Executive Session will begin at the conclusion of the Budget Workshop 

1. Call to Order of Council Meeting by Vice Chairwoman Clark

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.
*In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted
and furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification*

2. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.
(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,
discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or
the appointment of a person to a public body – Detention Center, Information Technology,
Human Resources, Administrative Services, Engineering Services, Development Services

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim –Tax Map # 063-26-14-001
and # 063-26-14-002; Banking Matters; Nickel Plate MCIP; Exit 3

(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision
of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in
the area served by a public body – Prospect Update



 
 

Agenda 05.20.2024 
Page 3 

 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. 
 
PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 
 

o 3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session 
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
5.  Approval of the Consent Agenda Items: 
 
6.  Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. Craig Winn and Daniel Burton of SCDOT – Updates and Project Summary for Jasper County 
 

8.  Dwayne Lee, P.A.H. Community Members (Purrysburg and Arm Oak Community) – Discussion of 
Recreation Equipment, Road Hazards/Improvements, Dredging of ditches, Future plans to improve the 
communities 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________  
RESOLUTIONS 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9. Kimberly Burgess - Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-16 approving the State Accommodations Tax 
Advisory Recommendations and Authorizing the Award of Funds for State Accommodations Tax 
requests.   
 
10.  Kimberly Burgess - Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-17 Authorizing the Award of Funds for 
Requests for Local Accommodations and Hospitality Taxes.  
 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
11. Kimberly Burgess - Consideration of the 2nd reading  and Public Hearing of Ordinance #O-2024-13 To 
Provide For The Levy Of Tax For Public Purposes In Jasper County For The Fiscal Year Beginning July 1st, 
2024 And Ending June 30th 2025 And To Make Appropriations For Said Purposes; To Adopt And Approve 



 
 

Agenda 05.20.2024 
Page 4 

 

The Jasper County Capital And Operations Budget For Fiscal Year 2024-2025, To Adopt And Approve The 
Jasper County School District Capital And Operations Budget For Fiscal Year 2024–2025; To Provide For The 
Levy Of Taxation For Fiscal Year 2024–2025; To Limit The Disbursements By The County Treasurer To Those 
Appropriated By Law; To Provide That Expenditures Not Exceed Appropriations; To Authorize Tax 
Anticipation Notes; To Make Authorization Of Certain Transfers; To Provide For Additional Appropriations 
And Borrowing; To Codify Jasper County Rates And Fees; To Provide For Lapsing Funds And Continuing 
Appropriations For Subsequent Years; To Require Certain Agencies And Departments To File Accountings; 
To Require The Treasurer To Sign General Fund Checks; To Provide Special Rules For Travel And Training 
Disbursements; To Provide For Travel Reimbursements; To Provide Compliance With Act No. 317 Of 1990; 
To Provide Certain Benefits To Council Members; To Provide For County Commission And Committee 
Stipends; To Provide For Jury Mileage; To Adopt Property Values; And To Provide For Effective Date Of This 
Ordinance (1st reading 05.06.2024) 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
12.Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 

 
13. Administrator’s Report   
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
14. David Tedder – Consideration of the 3rd reading, of Ordinance #O-2024-10  Authorizing An 
Amendment To That Certain Fee Agreement By And Between Jasper County, South Carolina And 
Hardeeville Industrial, LLC, As Successor To SDKM COMMERCE, LLC, Relating To The Investment Period 
Thereunder; And Other Related Matters. (1st reading 04.15.2024; 2nd reading 05.06.2024; public hearing 
05.06.2024) 
 
15. Chief Russell Wells – Acquisition of portable radios to establish a small spare equipment cache for 
times as needed.  
 
16. Danny Lucas - Automated Weather Observation Station (AWOS) Change Order #1. 
 
17. Danny Lucas - Ridgeland Airport Aviation General Liability Insurance 24 – 25 Renewal.  
 

18. Kimberly Burgess - Bid Presentation for the Directional Bore at Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport. 
 
19. Approval of the Minutes of 03.18.2024 



 
 

Agenda 05.20.2024 
Page 5 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________  
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
20. Council Members Comments: 

 
21. Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II. *Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive 
session. 
 
22. Adjournment: 
In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the 
meeting was posted on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place and on the county website 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  A copy of the agenda was given to the local news media and posted 
at the meeting location twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  
 

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities 
(843) 717-3696 





Expense Budget Performance Report 
Fiscal Year to Date 02/14/24 

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Account 

 

Adopted 

Account Account Description Budget 

Fund  010 - GENERAL FUND 

Department  090 - AGENCY APPROPRIATIONS 
 

 
4472 JASPER COUNTY FIRST STEPS 15,000.00 

YTD Budget - YTD 

Transactions Transactions Prior Year Total 
 
 
 

 
7,500.00 7,500.00 15,000.00 

 
EXPLANATION: 

Year-to-Date: DPIL Expenses: $10,353  PAT Expenses: $3,000  (Pending Full Funds Release) 

$12,000 – Imagination Library (DPIL)  Local Affiliate. An internationally replicated book gifting program that mails free, high 
quality books to all Jasper County children, birth to 5 years old, regardless of family income. Currently, we  have 659 children 

enrolled and have distributed 4,755 books! https://imaginationlibrary.com 

$3,000 – Parents As Teachers (PAT)  In 2023, we completed the Parents as Teachers Quality Endorsement and Improvement 
Process and earned the highest designation: Blue Ribbon Affiliate status. Being named a Blue-Ribbon Affiliate affirms that 

Jasper Co First Steps is among the highest quality members of the home visitation and parent education field, implementing 

the evidence-based Parents as Teachers model with fidelity and quality. We provide evidence-based learning experiences 

customized for the individual needs of each family and child. Delivering child development activities to at-risk families through 

personalized home visits, monthly group connections, developmental screenings and resource connections.  

https://parentsasteachers.org  

JCFS Dads Matter – In-house fatherhood initiative implemented to engage our PAT fathers. Acknowledges and celebrates their 
important role in the healthy development of children and families. FY24 Dads Matter Summit & Fishing Excursion, June 8, 
2024 

 
Requested by  ___Duchett Polite Hylton  

 
Date    03/07/2024   

Email address    dhylton@jasperfirststeps.org  

Best Contact Info     C: 843-592-7749 or O: 843-726-5100   

 
 
 

Run by Kimberly Burgess on 02/14/2024 02:58:27 PM Page 1 of 1 

https://imaginationlibrary.com/
https://parentsasteachers.org/


Technical College of the 





Hardeeville Marine 





Coastal Empire 

Community Mental 



Jasper County Budget Worksheet
B u d g e t  Y e a r  2 0 2 5

COCD=3c
r

CD
CCLDCMOCM

CD34—'
o<CMoCMTDCDQ

.
OTD<
 

cS 
d
o

 
CM
 

TD
 

O
 

3
 

CM
 

CO

CJ
<COCMOCM

OCOCD
Q

 
-»—< 
c:=5ouCJ
<

oooLOCMooLOKooCDotH-eo

oooorH

incoQ
.

Oi_Q
.

<
 

§
 

>
* 

CD 
CJ 

CD
S
 

5

'op 
ra

• 1
03 

^
O
 

CD
4—

'
<= 

C
L 

CD 
r-

£
 

E

TDC3

CDC
L

CD
Q

COCDOOo

TD_CD
_Q13OT

3CCD
_C4-<CDi_o

CD
uCD
~

o
_3uc

U>
*

EcCDuJC4—
>

CDCD
_C>_QT

3CD
“D>O

EEoT
3CCD

CDU’>CDCO

TDC13OQ
_

CD

o§ 
o

° S S
c
 

W
 

CD
co 

_
 

CD 
O

 
O
 

m-
 

T
3
 

QJD 
to 

c
 

jz
 
^

4-J 
CO

^ 
roCD

E(DLL_CD>COcCD

-
 
I

—
 

T
3 

03 
CCD

C
L 
^

 
CO

—
 

O
 

u
 

’c

CDu>v_(DCD
_QE3

CDUCD
~D’>Oi_C

L
CD

TDCCD

CCDE>_oQ
.

ECDICOCDu
co

CD(D>
•

i—CDC
L

OOCDro-c/v>_cDO3oco>4—•
c13Ouc_CDC

L
coCDCu’c7
3

CDD
O

E-t-j
3oCD

_C4-J
_ECO
4—*
cCD

CD 
CD 

co 
Q

_

C=3EEo

CDCD£CDCJ

c3oui_CDC
L

T
3CCDCD 

O
 

DO
 

■*-* 
CD 

±
2

C
 

3
 

OU
 

‘4—
c_ 

O
 

CD 
to 

C
L 

CD 
co 

d) 
CD 

c_ 
—

> 
CD 

CD 
CU)

1
5
 
1
2
:

_TO 
tO

 
•I-1 

4-J

^
 £ 

<= 
E

8
 

5
°
 

u
 

CD 
CO

h
:

CDC
L

13coECD4-»ECD

c3CDCD
jz

CD 
5

 
D

O
 
°

_d 
4_i 

U
 

_

JDOEc_3Oo
 

S

CDco

CZ>

T
D
 

4-* 
OJ 

CD 
T

D
 

CD 
>
 

X
 

O
 

—
C

L 
4—* 
C

oCMOPMIOrHoPMEoi_M—vPCJ)
rntH>_Q"OCDCOCDCD

DOC£oDO>"CD3E4—*
couTDCCDCDc_CD

-C

>

o»- 
3

Q
- 

"D
 

CD 
>

 
^
 

"O
 

T
3 

C
 

C
 
^

 
CD 

c/3 
C
l

E
 
“

CD 
+J 

c_ 
C

 
DO
 

CD
e
 

e

“
■ 

TO
^
 

CD
:l
 

H

U
 

>~

TO 
S

Z
£
 

o

5
 

£

c
 
p

E
 

%

CD 
—

 

S
i 

CD
2
 

aJ
CD 

-C
 

Q
.

Oo

cCDUco4—*
cCD4—1
CD

T
3CD

CDc_CDCDoroPM

CD

-QO3O

CDCO
 

-C
- 

C
 

+-• 
O
 

C
 

C
L 

—
 

co 
CD 

CD 
to 

^
 

O
 

co 
-C

X
 

O

T
3CDCD

Co3C
L

OC
L

3Ouc_CDC
L

_QO

C3EEouCD>

CD 
CD
X"fD4-» 

U
 

4—»

I 
^
 

-g
 

>
 

oL-C
L 

CD

C
 

>
*

E
 

co
£U
 

OJ
t- 

o
S

. 
E

s ?
c—
 

o
CDCJ 

co

SP03ooLOM—oCDco(OCDc_OEc03

DO
 

‘to 
=5 

c
 

O
 

CD

I—
 

u

^
 

X
I

>
- 

o
.t; 

£

liO
 

j- 
U
 

CD4-»
CD 

L*—

Q_c
 

o

LU
 

>
. 

■*“*
—

 
03 

J-
03 

Q
_ 

O

03O
COCDu

3OJ=
>
 

rn
 

-r

CD

OLOLOroc_3O

CD 
>

.
S

 
5

 
|

u
 

^
 
u

03 
CO

o
 

_C
 

Q
.

4-» 
-=*

o
 

-S

03
T

33ODO
_EX

5c3

CD

O
 

O
 

03 
O

QJ 
T

* 3
 

U
U
 

JZ

>
;  

ro
£
 

.1

o
 

±L
U
 

~D
 

c_ 
T

3 
CD 

03 
~
 

CD

P
 
£
 
1

CO
CD
U

D
OE

z=

T3CJCO@
J

JZ
DO

DO
3

3
O

o
£Z

3
CD

CD
JZ

JZ
CJ

CJi—
CO

CM
!5

S
Z

OCM
JZ4—»

T3
LO

t5
3

CO
3

LOCDCOCDi00r
\

co00O
co
X

CO
4—

'
CD

CJ
>

l—
CD

CO
"O

4—
1

4—
'

TD
c

CO
<

o
CD

O
3

a
i

'CD
4—

'
a-

4—
■

CO
CD

CD
E

CD
CC

Q
LU

CO







STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NUMBER #R-2024-16 

RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STATE ACCOMMODATIONS TAX ADVISORY 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF FUNDS FOR STATE 

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX REQUESTS 

WHEREAS, the County of Jasper, estimated that the total State Accommodations Tax 

Funds to be received in Fiscal Year 2025 is $110,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated total State Accommodations Tax available for award to 

requesting organizations has been reduced by amounts required by State law to be distributed first to 

the County in the amounts of $25,000 plus five percent (5%) of the remaining balance of the State 

Accommodations Tax received for the fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, thirty percent (30%) of the remaining balance of State Accommodations Tax 

must be allocated to a special fund and used only for advertising and promotion of tourism to 

develop and increase tourist attendance through the generation of publicity; and  

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Chamber of Commerce has an existing, ongoing tourist 

promotion program; and  

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Council may select an organization with an existing, 

ongoing tourist promotion program to manage the special fund to be used only for advertising and 

promotion of tourism; and  

WHEREAS, the County has a negative carry-forward amount of Accommodations Tax 

funds from Fiscal Year 2023 of $(10,156.37) which will be recuperated by the County in the fiscal 

year after occurrence; and  



2 

WHEREAS, the County has estimated a carry-forward of Accommodations Tax funds from Fiscal 

Year 2024 of $55,000.00 which must be spend by the County within two years of receipt; and  

WHEREAS, the total available State Accommodations Tax funds available for award to 

requesting organizations is $100,093.63, adjusted for allocations mandated by the State and for the 

carry-forward from the prior fiscal year and the estimated carry-forward from the current fiscal year; 

and  

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee, during its 

April 17, 2024, meeting, recommended the requests below to be funded; and  

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Council finds the recommended requests and expenditures 

comply with applicable State laws regarding the use of State Accommodations Tax and accepts the 

recommendation of the Jasper County Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Jasper County Council, in 

Council, assembled, hereby selects the Jasper County Chamber of Commerce to receive thirty 

percent (30%) of the balance remaining after the amounts allocated to the County have been 

deducted. Said funds shall be used only for advertising and promotion of tourism to develop and 

increase tourist attendance through the generation of publicity.   

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Jasper County Council, in Council, 

assembled, hereby accepts the recommendation of the Accommodations Tax Advisory 

Committee, and authorizes the award of $82,000 of the State Accommodations Tax requests to 

and for the following: 



3 

Organization Purpose of Request 

Amount of 

Request 

Committee 

Recommendation 

Gopher Hill Festival Marketing for annual festival $3,000 $3,000 

Jasper County Chamber of 

Commerce 

Jasper Jamboree PKC Racoon 

Hunt 

$7,000 $7,000 

Jasper County Chamber of 

Commerce 

Visitors Center Operations $20,000 $20,000 

Morris Center for Lowcountry 

Heritage 

Targeted digital Advertising $15,000 $15,000 

Point South Merchants 

Association 

Electric bill for Street Lighting at 

Point South 

$17,500 $17,500 

Point South Merchants 

Association 

I-95 Point South Billboard $10,000 $10,000 

SC Lowcountry & Resort 

Islands Tourism Commission 

Support Tourism Promotion of 

Jasper County 

$9,500 $9,500 

ADOPTED THIS THE 20TH DAY OF MAY 2024, and effective AS OF THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2024 – 2025 BEGINNING ON JULY 1, 2024.  

_______________________________ 
Barbara B. Clark,Vice Chairwoman                               

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

_______________________ __________ 
David L. Tedder      Date 



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
Account # Order Number Identification Order PO Amount Cols Depth

66597 529831 Print Legal Ad-IPL01637060 - IPL0163706 $267.72 2 18 L

Lisa WagnerAttention:

Jasper County Planning & Building Services
358 Third Avenue
Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov

STATE OF                               )

SOUTH CAROLINA             ) AFFIDAVIT

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT   )

I, Tara Pennington, makes oath that the
advertisment, was published in The Island
Packet and The Beaufort Gazette, a
newspaper published in Beaufort County,
State and County aforesaid, in the issue(s) of

2 insertion(s) published on:

03/13/24, 03/20/24

Tara Pennington

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 20th day
of March in the year of 2024

Notary Public in and for the state of Texas, residing in
Dallas County

Extra charge for lost or duplicate affidavits.
Legal document please do not destroy!



Minutes of the Jasper County Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee Meeting 
April 17, 2024 

 
Present: Committee Members:  William Olendorf, Chetan Patel, Kendall Malphrus, Claude Dinkins, 
Mauricio Llambias and Bonnie Bennett. Absent from meeting - JoAnne Feely, 
 
Jasper County Staff:  Kimberly Burgess, Director of Administrative Services, Bonnie David, Finance 
 
Kimberly Burgess opened the floor for nominations for the seat of Chair. 
 
Bill Olendorf motioned to nominate Claude Dinkins as Chair, and Kendall Malphrus seconded the 
motion. Unanimous. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 am by Claude Dinkins.  
 
The committee led the Pledge of Allegiance and Mr. Olendorf, the Invocation.  
 
Approval of Agenda: Motioned by Mr. Dinkins, all Ayes. Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Minutes:  Motioned by Ms. Malphrus, no objections, minutes approved. 
 
New Business:  

a. Gopher Hill Festival-Linda Dailey has made a request of $3000.00 for the Annual Gopher Hill 
Festival.   

 
Motion:  Mr. Oldendorf 
Second:  Mr. Patel 
Vote: All ayes 

 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
 
     b.  Jasper County Chamber of Commerce – Kendall Malphrus has made a request totaling $27,000 for 
the Jasper Jamboree Raccoon Hunt ($7,000) and Operations of the Visitor Center ($20,000).  
 
It is a three (3) day event and is all about the dogs. The dogs are there for training purposes only and there 
are no weapons used, nor are raccoons harmed. 
 
Racoon Jamboree                                                         Visitors Center 
 

Motion: $7,000 Claude Dinkins                                   Motion:  $20,000 Bill Olendorf 
Second: Bonnie Bennett                                               Second: Mauricio Llambias 
Vote: 5 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused                       Vote: 5 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused 
 
Both motions passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
    
   c.  Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage—Tamara Herring has requested $15,000 for the purchase of 
museum exhibitions, programs, and marketing.   
 

Motion: Kendall Malphrus 
Second: Bonnie Bennett 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
 



Minutes of the Jasper County Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee Meeting 
April 17, 2024 

   
 d.  Point South Merchants Association—William Olendorf made a request totaling $27,500 for street 
lighting ($17,500) and Exit 33 billboard advertising ($10,000) 
 
 

Street Lighting 
Motion:  Ms. Malphrus 
Second:  Mr. Patel, with amendments that follow: 
               Approve $17, 500 for street lighting.   

  Approve $10,000 exit 33 billboard, pending billboard is retrofitted with Jasper County DMO      
logo 

               
Vote: 5 ayes/Bill Olendorf recused 
 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
   e.  Lowcountry & Resort Islands Tourism Commission – Peach Morrison has made a request for $9,500 
to be used to promote tourism in Jasper County.  
 
 

Motion: Mr. Patel 
Second: Bill Olendorf 
Vote: 5 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused 
 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
The Committee agreed that all organizations receiving State Accommodation’s Funds must provide a link 
or logo to the Jasper County DMO website. 
 
 
Adjourn 
 
Mr. Dinkins motioned, Kendall Malphrus seconds.  Motion passed.  The meeting adjourned at 3:27 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted:     Approved: 
 
 
 
_________________________________       ______________________________ 
Kimberly Burgess, Dir. Admin. Services   Claude Dinkins, Chair 
 

 



1  

JASPER COUNTY ACCOMMODATIONS TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
                                  Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg. 

358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936 
April 17, 2024 

AGENDA 
 
 

2:00 P.M.  
 

I. Elect Chair 
 

II. Call to Order 
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

IV. Invocation 
 

V. Approval of Agenda 
 

  VI.      Approval of the Minutes – April 11, 2023 
 

VII. New Business 
 

a. Gopher Hill Festival—Linda Dailey has made a request of $3,000 for the Annual Gopher 
Hill Festival. A representative will be available to address this request. 

Motion: 
Second: 
Vote: 
 
 

b. Jasper County Chamber of Commerce—Kendall Malphrus has made a request totaling 
$27,000 for the Jasper Jamboree Raccoon Hunt ($7,000) and Operations of the Visitor 
Center ($20,000).  A representative will be available to address this request. 

 Motion: 
 Second: 
 Vote: 
 
 

c. Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage—Tamara Herring has requested $15,000 for the 
2024-2025 museum exhibitions, programs, and marketing. A representative will be 
available to address this request. 

 Motion: 
 Second: 
                                Vote: 



2  

 
 

d. Point South Merchants Association—William Olendorf made a request totaling $38,200 
for street lighting ($17,500), Exit 33 billboard advertising ($10,700), and I-95 Point South 
billboard advertising ($10,000).  A representative will be available to address this request.  

 Motion: 
 Second: 
 Vote: 
 
 

e. SC Lowcountry Tourism Commission—Peach Morrison has made a request for $9,500 to 
be used to promote tourism in Jasper County.  A representative will be available to 
address this request. 

Motion: 
 Second: 
 Vote: 

 
 

 
 

VIII.  Adjourn 
 
 

 

 

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities 
(843) 717-3692 



Minutes of the Jasper County Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee Meeting 
April 11, 2023 

 
Present: Committee Members:  William Olendorf, Chetan Patel, Kendall Malphrus, Claude Dinkins and 
Mauricio Llambias. 
 
Jasper County Staff:  Kimberly Burgess, Director of Administrative Services, Darlene Epperson, Finance 
 
Kimberly Burgess opened the floor for nominations for the seat of Chair. 
 
Ms. Malphrus motioned to nominate Mr. Patel as Chair, and Mr. Dinkins seconded the motion. 
Unanimous. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 10:11 am by Chair Chetan Patel.  
 
The committee led the Pledge of Allegiance and Mr. Dinkins, the Invocation.  
 
Approval of Agenda: Motioned by Chetan Patel, all Ayes. Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Minutes:  Motioned by Chetan Patel, no objections, minutes approved. 
 
New Business:  

a. Jasper County Soil & Water Conservation District/Blue Heron Nature Center - Lyn Boyles 
Kendall Malphrus, as proxy for Ms. Boyles, has made a $9,800 request to promote the center’s 
tourism efforts.  

 

Motion: Bill Olendorf 
Second:  Claude Dinkins 
Vote: 4 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused 
 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
     b.  Jasper County Chamber of Commerce – Kendall Malphrus has made a request totaling $24,000 for 
the Jasper Jamboree Raccoon Hunt ($9,000) and Operations of the Visitor Center ($15,000).  
 
Ms. Malphrus explained that this is the 30th year of the event.  It is a three (3) day event and is all about 
the dogs. The dogs are there for training purposes only and there are no weapons used, nor are the 
raccoons harmed. 
 
Racoon Jamboree                                                         Visitors Center 
 

Motion: $9,000 Bill Olendorf                                      Motion:  $15,000 Bill Olendorf 
Second: Claude Dinkins                                              Second: Mauricio Llambias 
Vote: 4 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused                   Vote: 4 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused 
 
Both motions passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
    
   c.  Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage—Tamara Herring has requested $13,500 for the purchase of 
digital advertisement media to promote upcoming exhibitions.  The company from Charleston that will be 
hired will research demographics in a 150-mile range with the goal of targeting cultural institution 
attendees. 
 

Motion: Kendall Malphrus 
Second: Claude Dinkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 



Minutes of the Jasper County Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee Meeting 
April 11, 2023 

 
   d.  Point South Merchants Association—William Olendorf made a request totaling $36,500 for street 
lighting ($17,000), billboard advertising ($10,700) and new billboard ($9,000). 
 

Motion: Claude Dinkins made motion as allocated in the request and spreadsheet. 
Second: Kendall Malphrus  
Vote: 4 ayes/Bill Olendorf recused 
 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
   e.  Lowcountry & Resort Islands Tourism Commission – Peach Morrison has made a request for $9,200 
to be used to promote tourism in Jasper County. She stated that she does request the 6% from all 
municipalities and counties. 
 

Motion: Claude Dinkins 
Second: Bill Olendorf 
Vote: 4 ayes/Kendall Malphrus recused 
 
The motion passed with the caveat if funds are available. 
 
 
Adjourn 
 
Mr. Dinkins motioned, Kendall Malphrus seconds.  Motion passed.  Meeting adjourned at 11:51 am. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted:     Approved: 
 
 
 
_________________________________       ______________________________ 
Kimberly Burgess, Dir. Admin. Services   Chetan Patel, Chair 
 

 



JASPER COUNTY
      ACCOMMODATIONS TAX

FUNDING REQUEST WORKSHEET
        FY 24-25  

BUDGET Actual
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE 110,000.00$                
AMOUNT ALLOCATED TO JASPER COUNTY (25,000.00)                   

------------------------------ ------------------------------
NET REVENUE 85,000.00                    -                                                       
5% OF NET ALLOCATED TO JASPER COUNTY 4,250.00                      -                                                       
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (30%) 25,500.00                    -                                                       
A-TAX FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION (65%) 55,250.00                    -                                                       

------------------------------ ------------------------------
BALANCE -$                             -$                                                     

A-TAX ACCOUNT EXPENDITURES:

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE  FY24 A-TAX FUNDS (65%) 55,250.00$                  
CARRY FORWARD (FY22-23) (10,156.37)                   
ESTIMATED CARRY FORWARD (FY23-24) 55,000.00                    

-------------------------------
TOTAL ESTIMATED AVAILABLE A-TAX FUNDS                 100,093.63$                
A-TAX FUNDS APPROVED AND EXPENDED PY 82,000.00$                  
REMAINING CARRY-OVER 18,093.63$                  

AMOUNT APPROVED REQUEST COMMITTEE
REQUESTS: LAST YEAR AMOUNT RECOMMENDATION

GOPHER HILL FESTIVAL -                                3,000.00                   3,000.00                       

JASPER COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE JASPER JAMBOREE 9,000.00                       7,000.00                   7,000.00                       

JASPER COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE VISITOR CENTER 15,000.00                     20,000.00                 20,000.00                     

MORRIS CENTER FOR LOWCOUNTRY HERITAGE 13,500.00                     15,000.00                 15,000.00                     

POINT SOUTH MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION                       17,000.00 17,500.00                 17,500.00                     

POINT SOUTH MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION                       10,700.00 -                            -                                

POINT SOUTH MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION 9,000.00                       10,000.00                 10,000.00                     

SC LOWCOUNTRY & RESORT ISLANDS TOURISM COMMISSION 9,200.00                       9,500.00                   9,500.00                       

TOTAL 83,400.00$                   82,000.00$               82,000.00$                   

PURPOSE

PKC NATIONAL RACOON HUNT

VISITORS CENTER OPERATIONS

SUPPORT TOURISM PROMOTION OF JASPER COUNTY 

2024-25 MUSEUM EXHIBITIONS, PROGRAMS, MARKETING

ELECTRIC BILL FOR STREET LIGHTING AT POINT SOUTH

I-95 POINT SOUTH BILLBOARD

MARKETING FOR ANNUAL FESTIVAL

I-95 Exit 33 NB EXIT NOW BILLBOARD





























































9  

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX REQUEST APPLICATION 
Jasper County, South Carolina 

 
ACCOMMODATIONS TAX FUNDS REQUEST APPLICATION 

 
 

Requesting (please check mark): State ☐ or Local ☐ 
 

 

Date:   Total Project Costs:   Total Amount Requested:   
 
 
 

A. PROJECT NAME:   
 

B. ORGANIZATION:   
 
 

Sponsor Name: Title:   
 

Sponsor Address:   
 

Sponsor Phone:   
 

Contact Name: Title:   
 

Contact Address:   
 

Contact Phone:   
 
 
 
 

For Office Use Only 
 
 

Date Received:   Time Received:   By:   

04/02/2024

Tamara Herring Executive Director

PO Box 1116, Ridgeland, SC 29936

843-284-9227 ext. 104

The Daniel O Morris South Carolina Lowcountry Heritage Trust dba Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage

$15,000.00$152,175.00

2024-25 Museum Exhibitions, Programs, Marketing



10  

A. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 
 

1. General Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. If arts/cultural activity, give specific description of project (attach additional sheets, if needed). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3. Impact on or benefit to tourism (if required under the law). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4. Duration of project: Start Date: Completion Date:   
 

5. Permits required (if any):    
 

6. Additional Comments: 
 
 

 
 _ 

 
 
 
 

July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025

Morris Center exhibitions and programs for 2024-25 fiscal year (July 1, 2024 - June  30, 2025).

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage is a professionally staffed Museum in Jasper 
County. The museum curates exhibitions based on local history and culture as well as 
hosts several traveling exhibitions to highlight relevant stories that may not have been 
otherwise explored. All exhibitions are related to South Carolina art, history and/or culture. 

Morris Center will have three new exhibits on view, including The Language of Clay:
Catawba Indian Pottery & Oral Traditions, Sandy Islanders: A People of the 
Land and Linked Exhibition by Colin Quashie, as well as myriad programs and 
workshops.
Program Schedule: Appendix A-1
Marketing Proposal: Appendix A-2



11  

B. FUNDING: 

 
1. Source of funds:   

 
 

2. Have you requested funding from other sources or organizations for this project? 
 

 
If yes, please list sources and amounts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Contributions to the project by the sponsoring organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C. FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

 
1. A line-item budget of the project (sample below.) 

 
 

Line Items Requested $ Approved $ Expended $ Reimbursement to the County $ 

Security 750.00 750.00 700.00 50.00 

Food 2,500.00 2,500.00 3,200.00 0.00 

Advertising 5,200.00 5,200.00 4,550.00 650.00 

Total 8,450.00 8,450.00 8,450.00 700.00 

 
2. Most recent fiscal year balance sheet and profit and loss accounting statement. 

 
D. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES: 

 
Provide a copy of official minutes where in the sponsoring organization approves the project and commits the 
organization to financial responsibility for carrying it out to the stage of completion contemplated in the 
application, should funding be approved. 

Yes

SC Arts Commission: Molding Together Programs (in support of the Language of Clay exhibit): $2,550, 
SC Humanities: Living Legacy Programs (in support of the Language of Clay & Sandy Islanders): $5,000

N/A

South Carolina Arts Commission, South Carolina Humanities, South Arts,
Donnelley Foundation, Jasper County A-Tax, Town of Ridgeland A-Tax &Morris Center Funds

Approved grant support from:
SC Arts Commission: Molding Together Programs (in support of the Language of Clay exhibit): $2,550, 
SC Humanities: Living Legacy Programs (in support of the Language of Clay & Sandy Islanders): $5,000
Pending grant support from:
South Arts: Linked Exhibition by Colin Quashie: $2,300 
GDDF: Artistic Vitality: $10,000

See attached - Appendix (C-2)

See attached - Appendix (C-1)



12  

E. PRIOR RECIPIENT'S REPORT (If you received prior ATAX funds): (Attach additional sheets, if needed): 
 

1. How did you use the funds? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. What impact did this have on the community or benefit tourism? Describe how tourism statistics were captured. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Provide the previous two years and current budgets. 

 
4. Include the total annual funding received each year that you applied. 

 
F. ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: (Attach additional sheets, if needed): 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Signature: Date:   

Morris Center received $12,000 in 2022 and $13,500 in 2023.

04/02/2024

The funds for this project were used to compile data and research to develop reports 
that would inform the ideal spend of marketing dollars for maximum return on investment 
and targeted digital ads to the segment identified to attend the museum.

See attached - Appendix (E-1)

See attached - Appendix (E-2)



Date Start Time End Time Program Name Presenter/ Instructor Description

7/9/2024 2:00 PM 3:00 PM The Voices of Sandy 
Island Eric Crawford

Step into the world of Sandy Island and its Gullah culture 
with Dr. Eric Crawford as he digs into the significant 

meaning of music from this unique place. Drawing from his 
research, Dr. Crawford gives an insightful talk uncovering 
the melodies that resonate through generations, weaving 
tales of resilience, identity, and the soulful essence of the 

Gullah people of the island.

7/12/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

7/13/2024 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Tissue Dying Silk Scarves 
Workshop Ellen Scott

Indulge your creative spirit and immerse yourself in the 
vibrant world of textile art with Instructor Ellen Scott. Join us 

for a hands-on experience as you transform ordinary silk 
scarves into stunning, one-of-a-kind masterpieces.

7/19/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

7/20/2024 11:00 AM 1:00 PM

Sounds of Unity: Music 
and Dance with the Edisto 

Natchez-Kusso Tribe Edisto Natchez-Kusso

Explore the interconnectedness of music and dance in the 
Edisto Natchez-Kusso cultural mosaic. This program aims 
to enlighten and inspire, offering a glimpse into the tribal 
traditions through captivating performances and a shared 

celebration of the power of artistic expression.

7/26/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

8/6/2024 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Sleeping with the 
Ancestors

Joe McGill and Herb 
Frazier

Based on their compelling book of the same name, Joe 
McGill and Herb Frazier offers a firsthand account of Joe 

McGill's groundbreaking initiative to spend nights in former 
slave dwellings scattered across the nation. Through 
intimate storytelling, McGill and Frazier illuminate the 

profound significance of these sites, while also shedding 
light on the broader complexities of race in America.

8/23/2024 12:00 PM 1:30 PM Brown Bag Blues Gary Erwin

Join us for a lunchtime treat as Shrimp City Slim, a 
seasoned musician with a trademarked stage name, takes 
you on a captivating journey through piano blues and folk 

songs. Bring your brown bag lunch and enjoy a family-
friendly blend of fun, roots, and education in this 

entertaining celebration of thirty-nine years in the world of 
music. Immerse yourself in the rich sounds of Shrimp City 

Slim's unique blend of world piano blues and original 
songs—a delightful experience for all ages!

8/24/2024 10:00 AM 2:00 PM Glass Mosaics Pat Stone

Create a luminous mosaic suncatcher in this 4-hour 
workshop led by glass artist Pat Stone. You'll also learn 

how to safely cut glass, follow mosaic patterns, and grout 
pieces.

9/7/2024 11:00 AM 12:00 PM Living Legacy Tour Staff

Enjoy a unique perspective guided tour of Morris Center's 
current exhibitions. This series explores the history and 

culture of the Catawba Nation and Gullah people of Sandy 
Island. Learn how the communities are preserving their 

legacy.

9/10/2024 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Friends of Honey Hill FOHH

All are welcome to join the Friends of Honey Hill quarterly 
meeting and learn about recent preservation and protection 
efforts at the Honey Hill Battlefield. Visit fohhb.org for more 

information.

9/13/2024 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Art of Indigo Dyeing Leanne Coulter
Dye your own indigo bandana just in time for the fall 

season. Learn the basic techniques of natural dying from 
artist Leanne Coulter of Daufuskie Blues.

9/14/2024 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Art of Indigo Dyeing Leanne Coulter
Dye your own indigo bandana just in time for the fall 

season. Learn the basic techniques of natural dying from 
artist Leanne Coulter of Daufuskie Blues.

9/17/2024 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Jasper County Historical 
Society JCHS

Sit in on an informative meeting of the Jasper County 
Historical Society. The meetings include a presentation on 

local and state history topics.

10/5/2024 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Printmaking Workshop: 
Linocuts Ian Welch

Create cutting edge art! This hands-on workshop will 
introduce you to the art of linocut printmaking which 

involves carving into linoleum plates and then printing with 
ink and paper. Artist and educator Ian Welch will guide you 

through every step.

Appendix A-1



10/5/2024 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Living Legacy Tour Staff

Enjoy a unique perspective guided tour of Morris Center's 
current exhibitions. This series explores the history and 

culture of the Catawba Nation and Gullah people of Sandy 
Island. Learn how the communities are preserving their 

legacy.

10/19/2024 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Story Fest: Native & 
Gullah Narratives 4 Storytellers

Attend the 2nd annual Story Fest and immerse yourself in a 
family-friendly program. Explore the rich tapestry of cultural 
heritage in the Southeast through diverse stories. Engage 
with regional storytellers as they grace the stage, offering 
narratives that echo the distinct voices of Native American 
and Gullah traditions. Experience a genuine celebration of 
culture, uniting communities through the captivating power 

of storytelling.

11/12/2024 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Jasper County Historical 
Society JCHS

Sit in on an informative meeting of the Jasper County 
Historical Society. The meetings include a presentation on 

local and state history topics.

11/15/2024 2:00 PM 3:00 PM Shaping Identity: Catawba 
Women Potters Dr. Brooke Bauer

Join us for a captivating exploration of "18th century 
Catawba Women's Traditional Knowledge of Pottery-
making" with Dr. Brooke Bauer. As she delves into a 

section of her book, Becoming Catawba: Catawba Indian 
Women and Nation-building, 1540-1840, Dr. Bauer unveils 

the lives and legacies of Catawba women who played a 
pivotal role in shaping their identity and nation. Don't miss 
this opportunity to connect with the rich cultural tapestry of 
the Catawba Nation. Dr. Brooke Bauer is a citizen of the 

Catawba Nation of South Carolina and an Assistant 
Professor of History at the University of Tennessee. Her 

research and teaching interests center on Native American 
history, Early American History, women's history, and 

Indigenous material culture.

11/16/2024 10:00 AM 2:00 PM Glass Mosaics Pat Stone

Create a luminous mosaic suncatcher in this 4-hour 
workshop led by glass artist Pat Stone. You'll also learn 

how to safely cut glass, follow mosaic patterns, and grout 
pieces.

12/7/2024 2:00 PM 5:00 PM Winter Whimsy Land Candy Land Themed

This holiday season, Morris Center is bringing a whimsically 
fun time to the Lowcountry! Enjoy a reading of the 

Gingerbread Man while sipping hot cocoa and snacking on 
festive treats. Make a holiday ornament for the tree and 
take your picture with the main characters from Candy 

Land. 

Photographs with characters can be purchased for $5 and 
are available from 3pm - 4pm.

Character interactions provided by Coastal Events and 
Character Parties.

1/11/2025 11:00 AM 1:00 PM Linked Exhibition Opening Colin Quashie

Join us for a grand opening of Linked with the artist 
himeself, Colin Quashie. Quashie juxtaposes images of well-
known Black figures with other representations of artifacts 
to comment on stereotypes as they exist today. In Gabriel, 
Quashie tweaks an image of Louie Armstrong, updating his 

signature trumpet with a set of slave shackles. 

1/14/2025 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Jasper County Historical 
Society JCHS

Sit in on an informative meeting of the Jasper County 
Historical Society. Marking the inaugural meeting of the 

year this program will feature the installation of the newly 
appointed officers. 

1/18/2025 11:00 AM 12:00 PM Living Legacy Tour Staff

Enjoy a unique perspective guided tour of Morris Center's 
current exhibitions. This series explores the history and 

culture of the Catawba Nation. Learn how the communities 
are preserving their legacy.

1/25/2025 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Printmaking Workshop: 
Linocuts Ian Welch

Create cutting edge art! This hands-on workshop will 
introduce you to the art of linocut printmaking which 

involves carving into linoleum plates and then printing with 
ink and paper. Artist and educator Ian Welch will guide you 

through every step.

2/1/2025 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Living Legacy Tour

Enjoy a unique perspective guided tour of Morris Center's 
current exhibitions. This series explores the history and 

culture of the Catawba Nation. Learn how the communities 
are preserving their legacy.



2/8/2025 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Unlocking Your Creative 
Voice Colin Quashie

Participants in the workshops will be given a chance to 
bring a magazine that speaks to them, whether they like it 
or do not. Magazines will be provided to those who do not 

have one. They are to think of a situation in their lives when 
something happened to them, and they did not respond in 
the way they wanted. With that moment in mind, they will 

use the magazine or other piece of media to reimagine their 
desired response to the incident. They can use all the 

elements of the magazine along with other art supplies to 
create a puzzle or some other visual artform that illustrates 

their emotions and newfound creative voice.

2/22/2025 10:00 AM 2:00 PM Glass Mosaics Pat Stone

Create a luminous mosaic suncatcher in this 4-hour 
workshop led by glass artist Pat Stone. You'll also learn 

how to safely cut glass, follow mosaic patterns, and grout 
pieces.

3/8/2025 11:00 AM 1:00 PM
The History & Archaeology 

of Fort Motte Exhibition 
Opening

Joe Long

Join us for a grand opening of The History & Archaeology of 
Fort Motte. This traveling exhibit was developed by the 
South Carolina Confederate Relic Room and Military 

Museum and examines the 1781 siege of Fort Motte, as 
well as the excavation of the site and the artifacts 

uncovered. Includes panels, reproduction objects for display 
and hands-on educational objects.

Mar-25 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Friends of Honey Hill FOHH

All are welcome to join the Friends of Honey Hill quarterly 
meeting and learn about recent preservation and protection 
efforts at the Honey Hill Battlefield. Visit fohhb.org for more 

information.

3/11/2025 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Jasper County Historical 
Society JCHS Sit in on an informative meeting of the Jasper County 

Historical Society. 

3/14/2025 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Art of Indigo Dyeing Leanne Coulter
Dye your own indigo bandana to wear this spring season. 

Learn the basic techniques of natural dying from artist 
Leanne Coulter of Daufuskie Blues.

3/15/2025 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Art of Indigo Dyeing Leanne Coulter
Dye your own indigo bandana to wear this spring season. 

Learn the basic techniques of natural dying from artist 
Leanne Coulter of Daufuskie Blues.

3/11/2025 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Jasper County Historical 
Society JCHS

Sit in on an informative meeting of the Jasper County 
Historical Society. The meetings include a presentation on 

local and state history topics.

4/12/2025 11:00 AM 1:00 PM Sweetgrass Baskets 
Workshop Michael Smalls

Weave some history! Learn about the Gullah roots of 
sweetgrass baskets while making one to take home. 

Michael Smalls will guide workshop participants through the 
process of weaving a small basket or coaster. Raw 

materials are included in the cost of the workshop, but 
scissors and nail bone will be returned at the end of the 

class.

May-25 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Friends of Honey Hill FOHH

All are welcome to join the Friends of Honey Hill quarterly 
meeting and learn about recent preservation and protection 
efforts at the Honey Hill Battlefield. Visit fohhb.org for more 

information.
5/10/2025 12:00 PM 1:30 PM Spring Tea Party It is time for Morris Center's annual spring tea party. 

5/13/2025 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Jasper County Historical 
Society JCHS

Sit in on an informative meeting of the Jasper County 
Historical Society. The meetings include a presentation on 

local and state history topics.

5/17/2025 10:00 AM 2:00 PM Glass Mosaics Pat Stone

Create a luminous mosaic suncatcher in this 4-hour 
workshop led by glass artist Pat Stone. You'll also learn 

how to safely cut glass, follow mosaic patterns, and grout 
pieces.

6/7/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

6/14/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

6/21/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

6/28/2024 10:30 AM 12:30 PM Summer Reading Program Pratt Library

6/28/2025 11:00 AM 1:00 PM Sweetgrass Baskets 
Workshop Michael Smalls

Weave some history! Learn about the Gullah roots of 
sweetgrass baskets while making one to take home. 

Micahel Smalls will guide workshop participants through the 
process of weaving a small basket or coaster. The raw 
materials are included in the cost of the workshop, but 
scissors and nail bone will be returned at the end of the 

class.



 

2024  |   PREPARED BY BELLE STRATEGIES MARKETING AGENCY 

24-25 Marketing Budget Overview 
scope of work prepared for  

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage  
B Y  B E L L E  S T R A T E G I E S  M A R K E T I N G  A G E N C Y   

 

 

Timeline: Fiscal Year 2024 –2025 

Below is a detailed breakdown of the proposed budget, divided into two primary sections: 
Ad Spend and Services. 

 

Ad Spend: $12,000 for the Year 

This section allocates funds specifically for advertising dollars for targeted marketing across 

multiple digital and social media platforms to boost engagement and visitors to the Museum. 

• Google Ads Implementation 

o Launch search ads to appear alongside Google search results. 

o Create and manage display ads within Google's Display Network. 

o Develop video ads for placement on YouTube targeting relevant interests. 

• Meta Platforms Advertising 

o Design targeted Facebook ads using specific demographic and behavioral data. 

o Produce engaging Instagram ads for user feeds and stories. 

• LinkedIn Marketing 

o Promote key content through sponsored posts in LinkedIn feeds. 

o Utilize LinkedIn's advertising tools for additional formats, including display 

ads. 

o Apply precise targeting based on professional criteria such as job titles and 

industries. 

Support Services: $24,000 for the Year 
This section covers the various services that will be provided as part of the scope. 

  

• Comprehensive Museum Marketing: Utilizing a multi-channel mix of platforms 

to increase potential out-of-town and regional visitors, with a focus on increasing 

Venue Rentals, Events and Tours. 

Appendix A-2



 

2024  |   PREPARED BY BELLE STRATEGIES MARKETING AGENCY 

• Ongoing Strategy: Ensuring creativity and consistency across all marketing 

materials and messages engaging both the local community and the tourism 

community. 

• Social Media Management: Ongoing management of social media profiles, 

content creation and community engagement. 

• Paid Advertising Management: Strategic planning and execution of paid 

advertising campaigns across various platforms. 

• SEO Support: Ongoing implementation of SEO best practices to improve website 

visibility and organic search rankings via regular blogging and keyword support. 

• Reporting: Regular analysis and reporting on the performance of marketing 

activities to inform future decisions. 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

Client agrees to pay $24,000 for services rendered in fiscal year 24-25. Payment will be collected via a 

monthly invoice of $2,000.00 The first payment is due by or before July 15, 2024.  

 

Returned checks or failed electronic payments are subject to a $25 administrative fee. Any invoice or 

scheduled payment over 10 days past due will be subject to a late fee of $25 and a charge of 1.5% interest 

per month on the outstanding balance.  

 

Client and Vendor each retain the right to terminate this contract in writing at any time; however, payment 

is required for any work already completed. Belle Strategies Marketing Agency agrees to provide the 

services listed in this agreement in a timely, ethical, and enthusiastic manner.  

 
 
 

 
__________________________________________________  Rachel Creveling                         4/2/2024 
Morris Heritage Representative               Date   Belle Strategies Marketing Agency              Date 



Line Items Requested Approved Expended Reimburse to County
Marketing Ad Spend 12,000.00$        -$                       -$            -$                                    

Marketing Consultant Services 3,000.00$          21,000.00$          -$            -$                                    
Morris Center Exhibits -$                    8,800.00$             -$            -$                                    

Morris Center Programs -$                    17,000.00$          -$            -$                                    
Operations (Staff, Supplies, Utilities) -$                    105,375.00$        -$            -$                                    

-$                    -$                       -$            -$                                    
TOTAL 15,000.00$       152,175.00$        -$           -$                                   

Appendix C-1



  1/2

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage
Statement of Activity

January - December 2023

TOTAL

Revenue

41100 Venue Rental 8,488.00

43500 Donations 2,420.39

43700 Gift Shop 1,170.86

43800 Grants 44,833.00

44800 Public Support 34,750.00

45800 Membership Dues 5,640.00

46400 Other Types of Income 8.00

47200 Program Income 19,515.00

48200 Sponsorship Income 1,100.00

Unapplied Cash Payment Revenue 0.00

Uncategorized Income-1 247.75

Total Revenue $118,173.00

GROSS PROFIT $118,173.00

Expenditures

62100 Contract Services

62110 Accounting Fees 38,751.00

62140 Legal Fees 955.00

66710 Security 540.00

67400 Consulting 4,000.00

Total 62100 Contract Services 44,246.00

62130 Fundraising Expense 875.00

62300 Events Expense 750.00

62400 Exhibit Construction 5,574.77

62401 Exhibit Design 375.00

62500 Educational Programs 10,723.19

62800* Facilities and Equipment 6,939.00

62880 Property  Tax 1,311.95

Total 62800* Facilities and Equipment 8,250.95

65000 Insurance 11,962.00

65000* Operations

65010 Gift Shop Expense 279.58

65020 Postage, Mailing Service 639.88

65050 Telephone, Telecommunications 4,571.27

66300 Marketing Expense 26,085.30

66700 Office Expense (supplies) 5,817.37

68310 Bank Service Charges 25.00

Total 65000* Operations 37,418.40

65100* Other Types of Expenses 100.00

65150 Memberships and Dues 1,448.00

Total 65100* Other Types of Expenses 1,548.00

Appendix C-2



  2/2

TOTAL

66200 Repairs and Maintenance 9,836.29

66210 Janitorial/Cleaning 3,720.00

Total 66200 Repairs and Maintenance 13,556.29

66801 Music Licenses 964.00

67000 Payroll Expenses

Payroll Expenses 805.08

SEP Retirement Contribution 7,350.00

Taxes 9,159.11

Wages 119,588.33

Total 67000 Payroll Expenses 136,902.52

67700 Taxes 6,368.00

67800 Trustee Fees 27,052.22

67900 Utilities 8,932.29

68300 Travel and Meetings 3,360.02

Processing Fees 874.41

Unapplied Cash Bill Payment Expenditure 0.00

Venue Expenses 3,340.00

Total Expenditures $323,073.06

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -204,900.06

Other Revenue

Other Income

Dividends 35,326.64

Exempt Dividends 927.19

Foreign Tax Paid -76.81

Management Fees -16,342.81

Realized Gains (Losses) on Sale 25,351.63

Unrealized Loss/Gain 447,318.89

Total Other Income 492,504.73

Total Other Revenue $492,504.73

Other Expenditures

Amortization 618.65

Depreciation 43,641.00

Total Other Expenditures $44,259.65

NET OTHER REVENUE $448,245.08

NET REVENUE $243,345.02



  1/2

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage
Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2023

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

10001 Wells Fargo - Main (5011) 4,744.36

10101 Wells Fargo - Operating (5029) 13,554.58

10201 Wells Fargo - Payroll (4717) 16,370.39

Wells Fargo - Money Market 7090-9306 42,267.71

Wells Fargo Bank - Money Market (inactive) 0.00

Wells Fargo Building Fund  4725 1,000.00

Total Bank Accounts $77,937.04

Other Current Assets

12000 Undeposited Funds 507.30

Inventory Asset 0.00

Uncategorized Asset-1 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $507.30

Total Current Assets $78,444.34

Fixed Assets

15000 Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 143,716.07

15100 Buildings

Buildings - Other 424,847.82

Capitalized Building  Costs 29,632.84

Construction/Demolition 460,209.00

Facility Building 850,618.77

Total 15100 Buildings 1,765,308.43

16000 Land 211,206.98

Accumulated Depreciation -405,121.32

Total Fixed Assets $1,715,110.16

Other Assets

18000* Marketable Securities

Wells Fargo - 7090-93060- Investments Unrealized Appreciation 802,259.89

Wells Fargo 7090-9306 - Investments - Cost 1,101,837.12

Wells Fargo 79564500 (inactive) 0.00

Total 18000* Marketable Securities 1,904,097.01

Website Design 3,175.00

Accumulated Amortization - Website Design -700.42

Total Website Design 2,474.58

Total Other Assets $1,906,571.59

TOTAL ASSETS $3,700,126.09

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

21100 Direct Deposit Liabilities 0.00



  2/2

TOTAL

24000 Payroll Liabilities 0.00

Federal Taxes (941/944) 1,514.98

SC Income Tax 279.82

SC Unemployment Tax 10.61

Total 24000 Payroll Liabilities 1,805.41

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

PPP - Wells Fargo Loan 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $1,805.41

Total Current Liabilities $1,805.41

Long-Term Liabilities

N/P Wells Fargo Bank 268,221.55

SBA Loan Payable 94,435.68

Total Long-Term Liabilities $362,657.23

Total Liabilities $364,462.64

Equity

30000 Opening Balance Equity 0.00

31500 Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 8,512.91

32000 Fund Balances -10.00

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 2,728,874.14

Other Comprehensive Income - Unrealized Appreciation of Investments 354,941.38

Net Revenue 243,345.02

Total Equity $3,335,663.45

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $3,700,126.09



 
Project Success – Appendix (E-1) 

Beginning in July 2023 Morris Center worked with the Morey Group to develop three reports to provide 
data to inform the ideal way to spend marketing dollars to obtain the highest return on investment. The 
visitor profile report provided the necessary information to develop a targeted segment of people that 
would have the highest potential to visit the Morris Center.  The positioning report compared Morris 
Center to other Museums in our market. This report demonstrated that Morris Center has the potential 
to capture a greater market share of the local and tourist cultural attraction visitors.  The website audit 
report determined that major changes were necessary to the website as this is the first interaction most 
cultural attraction seekers engage with an organization. With this information in hand, the Morris Center 
worked with their website developer to make all suggested changes, as well as developed creative assets 
with the graphic designer to target that segmented population identified in the visitor profile report. 

In early 2024, building on the momentum of the project with Morey Group, Morris Center partnered 
with Belle Strategies to revamp our digital identity to continue to propel the growth of the market 
capture for our museum in Jasper County. Working with Belle Strategies, Morris Center’s graphic, photo 
and video libraries were updated with new assets to create a cohesive look to create a brand identity. 
With these improvements to our brand as well as increased targeted marketing to a segmented group 
identified to have a high propensity to visit our museum, Morris Center increased visitation, as well as 
increased the email subscribers. 

Morris Center’s venue rentals have also increased. We will continue to promote this critical revenue 
driver for our museum. Typical rentals of our venue include weddings, retirement parties, family 
reunions and birthday parties. The Museum has also hosted fundraisers for local organizations as well as 
training workshops. Some of these venue rentals boost out-of-town guest attendance that require 
overnight accommodations at area hotels. 

 

 

& Appendix 3



  1/2

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage
Budget Overview: 2023 
January - December 2023

TOTAL

Revenue

41100 Venue Rental 7,300.00

43500 Donations 4,500.00

43600 Fundraising 20,000.00

43700 Gift Shop 3,000.00

43800 Grants 140,000.00

44800 Public Support 30,000.00

45800 Membership Dues 10,600.00

47200 Program Income 11,000.00

48200 Sponsorship Income 2,500.00

49000 Special Events Income 24,000.00

Total Revenue $252,900.00

GROSS PROFIT $252,900.00

Expenditures

62100 Contract Services

62110 Accounting Fees 15,000.00

62140 Legal Fees 3,000.00

66710 Security 1,250.00

67400 Consulting 15,000.00

Total 62100 Contract Services 34,250.00

62130 Fundraising Expense 4,000.00

62300 Events Expense 2,000.00

Gala Fundraising Expenses 13,750.00

Total 62300 Events Expense 15,750.00

62400 Exhibit Construction 6,500.00

62401 Exhibit Design 4,000.00

62500 Educational Programs 14,000.00

62510 Programs - (other - SCAC. etc.) 60,000.00

62800* Facilities and Equipment 6,500.00

62880 Property  Tax 1,500.00

Total 62800* Facilities and Equipment 8,000.00

65000 Insurance 10,000.00

65000* Operations

65010 Gift Shop Expense 1,500.00

65020 Postage, Mailing Service 2,000.00

65050 Telephone, Telecommunications 5,000.00

66300 Marketing Expense 50,000.00

66700 Office Expense (supplies) 16,000.00

Total 65000* Operations 74,500.00

65100* Other Types of Expenses

65130 Interest Expense - General 20,000.00

65150 Memberships and Dues 2,000.00

Total 65100* Other Types of Expenses 22,000.00

Appendix E-2



  2/2

TOTAL

66200 Repairs and Maintenance 16,500.00

66801 Music Licenses 1,000.00

67000 Payroll Expenses

Payroll Expenses 1,000.00

SEP Retirement Contribution 6,500.00

Taxes 11,093.00

Wages 145,000.00

Total 67000 Payroll Expenses 163,593.00

67800 Trustee Fees 32,000.00

67900 Utilities 11,000.00

68300 Travel and Meetings 4,000.00

Processing Fees 2,000.00

Venue Expenses 5,795.00

Total Expenditures $488,888.00

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -235,988.00

NET REVENUE $ -235,988.00



  1/2

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage
2024 Budget Overview
January - December 2024

TOTAL

Revenue

41100 Venue Rental 30,000.00

43500 Donations 5,000.00

43600 Fundraising 25,000.00

43700 Gift Shop 2,500.00

43800 Grants 150,000.00

44800 Public Support 33,500.00

45800 Membership Dues 11,500.00

47200 Program Income 30,000.00

48200 Sponsorship Income 5,000.00

49000 Special Events Income 25,000.00

Total Revenue $317,500.00

GROSS PROFIT $317,500.00

Expenditures

62100 Contract Services

62110 Accounting Fees 28,500.00

62140 Legal Fees 5,000.00

66710 Security 1,250.00

67400 Consulting 7,500.00

Total 62100 Contract Services 42,250.00

62300 Events Expense 12,000.00

62400 Exhibit Construction 4,000.00

62401 Exhibit Design 2,000.00

62500 Educational Programs 16,000.00

65000 Insurance 15,000.00

65000* Operations

65010 Gift Shop Expense 1,000.00

65020 Postage, Mailing Service 1,000.00

65050 Telephone, Telecommunications 5,000.00

66300 Marketing Expense 30,000.00

66700 Office Expense (supplies) 18,000.00

Total 65000* Operations 55,000.00

65100* Other Types of Expenses

65150 Memberships and Dues 1,500.00

Total 65100* Other Types of Expenses 1,500.00

66200 Repairs and Maintenance 17,500.00

66210 Janitorial/Cleaning 4,500.00

Total 66200 Repairs and Maintenance 22,000.00

66801 Music Licenses 1,500.00

67000 Payroll Expenses

Payroll Expenses 2,500.00

SEP Retirement Contribution 6,300.00

Taxes 16,000.00

Wages 205,000.00



  2/2

TOTAL

Total 67000 Payroll Expenses 229,800.00

67800 Trustee Fees 28,000.00

67900 Utilities 10,000.00

68300 Travel and Meetings

68310* Conference, Convention, Meeting 5,000.00

68320 Travel 5,000.00

Total 68300 Travel and Meetings 10,000.00

Processing Fees 1,500.00

Venue Expenses 7,500.00

Total Expenditures $458,050.00

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -140,550.00

NET REVENUE $ -140,550.00



 

 
 

Accommodations Tax 
Funding Final Report 

You may record information directly on this form or create a separate document for more detailed responses. 
 
 
 

1. PROJECT INFORMATION: 
 

Organization Name:   
 
 

Project Name:   
 
 

Contact Name:   
 

2. PROJECT COMPLETION: 
 

Were you able to complete the project as stated in your original application?   
 
 

If no, state discrepancies.   
 

3. PROJECT SUCCESS: 
Please share any additional comments regarding the project (e.g., lessons learned, successes, problems encountered, etc.) 

 
 
 
 

 
4. PROJECT ATTENDANCE: 

 
Record numbers in table below. Numbers are to reflect attendance and funds received for projects for both the current and 
previous periods. 

 
 

 
 

Total budget of event/project 

Prior Period Current Period 

 
Amount funded by Jasper County Accommodations Tax 

 

 
   

 
   

Amount funded by other source       

Targeted Digital Advertising

The Daniel O Morris South Carolina Lowcountry Heritage Trust dbaMorris Center for Lowcountry Heritage

Tamara Herring

Yes

$0

$0

$13,500

$13,500

$0$0

Please see attached Appendix (3)

Administrator
Highlight



 

 
 

Accommodations Tax 
Funding Final Report 

You may record information directly on this form or create a separate document for more detailed responses. 
 
 
 
 

Total attendance 
  

 
 

Total tourists 
  

 
 
 

5. Methods: 
Please describe the methods used to capture the attendance data listed above (e.g., license plates, surveys, zip codes, 
etc.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Project Budget: 
Please attach report indicating project expenses compared to budget for the current grant. 

 
7. Organization Signature: 
Provide signature of official within organization, verifying accuracy of above statements. 

 
 
 
 

Name:  Title:   
 
 

Signature:  Date:   

Executive DirectorTamara Herring

04/02/2024

 1,184
(07/01/22 - 06/30/23

946
(07/01/22 - 06/30/23

 1,954
(07/01/23 - 03/30/24

 1,368
(07/01/23 - 03/30/24

Morris Center obtains zip codes electronically from all patrons visiting museum exhibits and/or attending programs.

Please see attached appendix (6)

Administrator
Highlight



  1/1

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage
Statement of Activity by Customer

July 2023 - June 2024

JASPER COUNTY - ACCOMMODATIONS FY24 JASPER COUNTY STATE A-TAX TOTAL JASPER COUNTY - ACCOMMODATIONS TOTAL

Revenue

44800 Public Support 13,500.00 13,500.00 $13,500.00

Total Revenue $0.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00

GROSS PROFIT $0.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00

Expenditures

65000* Operations $0.00

66300 Marketing Expense 13,500.00 13,500.00 $13,500.00

Total 65000* Operations 13,500.00 13,500.00 $13,500.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00

NET OPERATING REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

NET REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Appendix 6



  1/1

Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage
Transaction Report
July 2023 - June 2024

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT SPLIT AMOUNT BALANCE

Operations

Marketing Expense

Jasper County - Accommodations

FY24 Jasper County STATE A-Tax

08/17/2023 Expenditure Inv. 
02719

Albert R. Renteria 
Corporation

Website Audit Update per Morey Group 
recommendations

66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

10101 Wells Fargo - 
Operating (5029)

450.00 450.00

08/22/2023 Bill 125 southerNothings Photoshoot for Marketing Assets 66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 150.00 600.00

10/02/2023 Bill 1170 Cait Maloney Creative Morey Group Digital Marketing Assets 66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 187.50 787.50

11/01/2023 Bill 2022-
233

Morey Consulting, Inc Ad List 66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 1,658.28 2,445.78

11/01/2023 Bill 2022-
233

Morey Consulting, Inc Positioning Study 66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 2,500.00 4,945.78

11/01/2023 Bill 2022-
233

Morey Consulting, Inc Website Audit 66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 1,000.00 5,945.78

11/01/2023 Bill 2022-
233

Morey Consulting, Inc Targeted Digital Advertising Campaign (150,000 
impressions)

66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 3,000.00 8,945.78

03/01/2024 Bill 2418 Belle Strategies Strategic Marketing 66300 Operations:Marketing 
Expense

20000 Accounts Payable 4,554.22 13,500.00

Total for FY24 Jasper County STATE A-Tax $13,500.00

Total for Jasper County - Accommodations $13,500.00

Total for Marketing Expense $13,500.00

Total for Operations $13,500.00

TOTAL $13,500.00

Appendix 6



























































STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NUMBER R-2024-17 

RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF FUNDS FOR REQUESTS FOR 
LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS AND HOSPITALITY TAXES 

WHEREAS, the County of Jasper, estimates that the total Local Accommodations Tax 

Funds to be received in Fiscal Year 2025 is $210,000; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Jasper, estimates that the total Local Hospitality Tax Funds to 

be received in Fiscal Year 2025 is $530,000; and  

WHEREAS, the County of Jasper, estimates that the total cash surplus carry-forward from 

Fiscal Year 2023 is $285,000; and  

WHEREAS, the County wishes to award to local organizations and event sponsors Local 

Accommodations and Local Hospitality Tax funds to promote tourism within the unincorporated 

portions of Jasper County; and   

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Council finds the recommended requests and expenditures 

comply with applicable State laws and County ordinances regarding the use of Local 

Accommodations Tax and Local Hospitality; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Jasper County Council, in 

Council, assembled, hereby awards the Local Accommodations Tax and Local Hospitality fund 

requests in the amount of $965,863 to and for the following: 



Organization Purpose of Request 
Request 
Amount 

Blue Heron Nature Center Marketing and advertising for Motorcoach Tours  $   3,000 
Blue Heron Nature Center SC Welcome Center digital advertising $ 10,800 
Blue Heron Nature Center SC Welcome Center study group $   3,800 

Friends of Honey Hill 

Development and production of a marketing and tourism 
plan to include time sequenced battle maps, cadaver dog 
services, an animated film about the Battle of Honey Hill, 
site clearing services, and marketing services 

$ 53,377 

Goal Soccer Cup 2024 Marketing and advertising for the event $  15,000 
Gopher Hill Festival Entertainment and advertising for the event $ 13,000 
Jasper County Chamber of 
Commerce 

Billboard on I-95 for Point South (Exit 33) $ 10,085 

Jasper County Chamber of 
Commerce 

Farmer’s Market—Maintenance and landscape care for the 
grounds 

$  4,119 

Jasper County Chamber of 
Commerce 

Operation of Historical Society’s Museum in the Visitor’s 
Center 

$ 10,382 

Jasper County Chamber of 
Commerce 

Farmer’s Market Concert Series—Two music concerts with a 
regional reach 

$ 32,000 

JC 250 Committee Thomas Heyward Jr. documentary film $ 47,800 

Keep Jasper Beautiful Litter Prevention Program $ 13,000 
Morris Center for 
Lowcountry Heritage 

2024-25 museum exhibitions, programs, and marketing $ 15,000 

Operation Patriots FOB 
“Concert for Heroes” marketing costs, transportation shuttle, 
production costs, shuttles, security/EMS 

$ 85,000 

Point South Merchants 
Association 

Jasper County patrol officer and I-95 & US 17 Point South 
billboards 

$ 72,500 

SC Lowcountry and Resort 
Islands Tourism Commission Advertising, signage, and billboards for Frampton Plantation 

and exhibits at the plantation 
$ 15,000 

Ridgeland-Claude Dean 
Airport 

Construction loan payments for Ridgeland-Claude Dean 
Airport 

$350,000 

Jasper County Improvements to Exit 33 $195,000 
Jasper County Exit 33 Lights-Utilities $ 17,000 



ADOPTED THIS THE 20th DAY OF May 2024, and effective AS OF THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2024 – 2025 BEGINNING ON JULY 1, 2024.  

__________________________ 
Barbara B. Clark, 
Vice Chairwoman

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

_______________________ __________ 
David L. Tedder Date 



JASPER COUNTY
LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS & HOSPITALITY TAX

   FY24-25  

REVENUE Budget Amount

LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 28% $210,000.00
LOCAL HOSPITALITY TAX 72% $530,000.00

------------------------
       TOTAL $740,000.00
UNSPENT APPROPRIATIONS AND CASH SURPLUS FROM FY22-23 $285,241.28

$1,025,241.28

LAST YEAR REQUEST RECOMMENDED

BLUE HERON NATURE CENTER 2,000.00$      17,600.00$           17,600.00$            

FRIENDS OF HONEY HILL BATTLEFIELD PRESERVATION AND RESTORATION 20,600.00$    53,377.00$           53,377.00$            

GOAL SOCCER CUP 2024 -$               15,000.00$           15,000.00$            

GOPHER HILL FESTIVAL 13,000.00$    13,000.00$           13,000.00$            

JASPER COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (BILLBOARD) 9,795.00$      10,085.00$           10,085.00$            

JASPER COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (FARMERS MKT GROUNDS MAINT) 4,800.00$      4,119.00$             4,119.00$              

JASPER COUNTY CHAMBER VISITORS CTR. & JASPER COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 10,209.00$    10,382.00$           10,382.00$            

JASPER COUNTY FARMERS MARKET CONCERT SERIES 16,000.00$    32,000.00$           32,000.00$            

JC 250 COMMITTEE THOMAS HEYWARD JR. DOCUMENTARY FILM -$               47,800.00$           47,800.00$            

KEEP JASPER COUNTY BEAUTIFUL (LITTER PREVENTION PROGRAM) 11,000.00$    13,000.00$           13,000.00$            

LOWCOUNTRY & RESORT ISLANDS TOURISM COMMISSION 14,000.00$    15,000.00$           15,000.00$            

MORRIS CENTER FOR LOWCOUNTRY HERITAGE 15,000.00$    15,000.00$           15,000.00$            

OPERATION PATRIOTS FOB "CONCERT FOR HEROES"            51,000.00$    85,000.00$           85,000.00$            

POINT SOUTH MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION 72,500.00$    72,500.00$           72,500.00$            

 
RIDGELAND-CLAUDE DEAN AIRPORT 350,000.00$  350,000.00$         350,000.00$          

JASPER COUNTY (IMPROVEMENTS TO EXIT 33) 193,000.00$  195,000.00$         195,000.00$          

JASPER COUNTY EXIT 33 LIGHTS-UTILITIES 17,000.00$    17,000.00$           17,000.00$            
--------------------------- -----------------------

       TOTAL 965,863.00$         965,863.00$          













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

Page 1 of 7 

 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF JASPER 
Ordinance # O-2024-13 

An Ordinance  
of Jasper County Council 

 
To provide for the levy of tax for public purposes in Jasper 
County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2024 and ending 
June 30th 2025 and to make appropriations for said purposes; to 
adopt and approve the Jasper County capital and operations 
budget for fiscal year 2024-2025, to adopt and approve the 
Jasper County School District capital and operations budget for 
fiscal year 2024–2025; to provide for the levy of taxation for 
fiscal year 2024–2025;  to limit the disbursements by the county 
treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that 
expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax 
anticipation notes; to make authorization of certain transfers; 
to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to 
codify Jasper County rates and fees; to provide for lapsing funds 
and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require 
certain agencies and departments to file accountings; to require 
the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to provide special 
rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for 
travel reimbursements; to provide compliance with act no. 317 
of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to 
provide for county commission and committee stipends; to 
provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to 
provide for effective date of this ordinance. 

   
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council in council duly assembled and by the 
authority of the same: 
 
SECTION 1.  Appropriation for Jasper County Capital and General Operations 
Budget.  There is hereby appropriated from revenues to be collected from the stated 
sources the following sums for the Jasper County Capital and Operational needs and for 
the purposes set forth for fiscal year 2024 – 2025: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 
JASPER COUNTY  

CAPITAL AND GENERAL OPERATIONS BUDGET 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

 
    
REVENUE  EXPENDITURES  
County Property Tax Levy $  33,205,600 Emergency Services $  18,254,423 
Local Option Sales Tax $    4,862,500 Sheriff  $    9,925,200 
Fee in Lieu  $    2,100,000 Detention Center $    4,139,000 
S.C. Local Government Fund   
Allocation 

 
$    1,350,300 

Engineering Services and 
Solid Waste 

 
$    4,250,700 

Cash Carry Forward $    5,869,052 Agency Appropriations $    2,683,079 
All Other Revenue $  13,085,550 All Other Expenditures $  21,220,600 
 
Total Revenue 

 
$  60,473,002 
 

 
Total Expenditures 

 
$  60,473,002 

County Debt Tax Levy $    3,120,400 County Debt  $    3,120,400 
 
County Grand Total 
 

 
$  63,593,402 
 

 
County Grand Total 

 
$  63,593,402 

 
The detailed Operations Budget containing line-by-line accounts by department and /or 
agency is hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance.  Management of individual accounts 
for the functions of elected officials shall be the responsibility of that elected official.  
 
 
SECTION 2.  Appropriation for Jasper County School District Capital and General 
Operations Budget.  There is hereby appropriated to the  
School Operations Budget the remaining non-appropriated funds collected through School 
District ad valorem taxation in Fiscal Year 2023-2024, which were in excess of School 
District funds appropriated by the FY 2023- 2024 budget ordinance. There is further hereby 
appropriated from revenues to be collected from the stated sources the following sums for 
the Jasper County School District Capital and Operational needs and for the purposes set 
forth for fiscal year 2024 - 2025: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

JASPER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CAPITAL AND GENERAL OPERATIONS BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 
 

   REVENUES                                                         APPROPRIATIONS 
 
School Property                                  School District                                 
Operations Tax Levy $ 30,384,644        Operations Tax Levy     $ 30,384,644  
School Debt   $   6,500,878          School Debt  $   6,500,878 
School Grand Total  $ 36,885,522          School Grand Total       $ 36,885,522 
 
 
SECTION 3.  Levy. There is hereby levied upon the taxable property of Jasper County a 
sufficient number of mills by the County Council from assessment of the property therein 
which, together with fines, forfeitures and taxes collected by various tax offices and all 
income of the County shall raise the amount therein appropriated and for the purpose herein 
stated.  
 

 Millage 
County  139.00   
County Debt 12.00 
School 166.00 
School Debt 25.00 
Total Mils 342.00 

 
 

Cherry Point Fire District 31.00 
 
SECTION 4.  Disbursement by Treasurer.  The Treasurer is directed to disburse to or 
on behalf of the activities described in Sections 1 and 2 no more than the amount 
appropriated and to hold all additional revenues referred to herein and all revenues 
collected as a result of and through the levied millage, over and above the appropriations 
stated herein, in an interest bearing account of the County, pending future appropriation by 
the County Council.  In the event that the actual collection of revenue shall be less than the 
appropriations made in Section 1 or 2, then appropriations shall be reduced to a sum equal 
to the amount of revenue actually collected. 
 
SECTION 5.  Expenditures Not to Exceed Appropriations. Expenditures shall not 
exceed appropriations without the consent of the County Council.  County Council 
authorization to amend the budget shall be ratified by ordinance through a budget 
amendment. 
 
SECTION 6. Tax Anticipation Notes Authorized.   For the purpose of paying in cash 
for the foregoing and all other general ordinary County expenses for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 as authorized by this ordinance or by any other appropriation ordinance hereafter 
passed in and for said fiscal year, the County Council of Jasper County is hereby 
authorized, empowered, and directed to borrow from time to time as may be necessary on 



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

the official note or notes of Jasper County, or other evidence or evidences of indebtedness, 
in anticipation of the collection of the taxes herein levied, provided that all loans made 
from private persons, firms, or corporations shall not exceed $6,000,000  in the aggregate.  
Such borrowing shall be sold in such manner and upon such terms as the County 
Administrator shall deem in the best interest of Jasper County, upon the advice of the 
County’s financial advisor and counsel.  Such borrowing may take the form of a public or 
private sale, as deemed appropriate by the Administrator.  Such sum or sums so borrowed 
shall constitute a valid and prior claim against the said taxes herein levied and against 
Jasper County, and shall also be secured by a pledge of the full faith, credit, and taxing 
power of Jasper County.  The Administrator, and any other officers or staff of Jasper 
County as are deemed by the Administrator necessary or convenient to the accomplishment 
of the borrowing authorized herein, are hereby authorized to execute all agreements, 
contracts, certificates, undertakings, disclosures, and other documentation as is convenient 
or necessary to facilitate such borrowing. 
 
SECTION 7.  Authorization of Transfer of Funds.  Each department head is permitted, 
subject to the County Administrator’s (or his designee’s) approval, to transfer 
appropriation(s) between object classifications codes within that department. Transfers 
from objects 2000 through 2080 (personnel codes) are not permitted under any 
circumstances without the approval of the County Administrator.  The County 
Administrator is permitted, when it is in the best interest of the individual County 
departments or agencies, to transfer appropriations between departments (from one 
department to another department) and between the County’s General Fund, Capital 
Projects Fund and Capital Improvements Fund (from one fund to another fund up to 
$50,000.   
 
SECTION 8.  Additional Appropriations and Borrowing.   If circumstances arise 
which, in the judgment of a majority of County Council, require the expenditure of a greater 
amount than herein above enumerated then the County Administrator shall have and is 
hereby given the right by this Ordinance to transfer funds between the County’s General 
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds and may also appropriate 
available funds for a purpose not mentioned or referred to in this Ordinance, and the County 
Treasurer is authorized to borrow, if necessary, such amount as may be required to meet 
such increases or additional appropriations and may pledge the full faith and credit of 
Jasper County for the payment of the amount borrowed.  Should actual funding sources be 
greater than projected in this Ordinance, the County Administrator may revise budgeted 
revenues and expenditures or direct the increase to be held for future year’s disbursements.  
 
SECTION 9.  Jasper County Rates and Fees.  The rates and fees attached hereto that are 
not included or provided for in either South Carolina law or other Jasper County law shall 
hereby be declared to be part thereof this Ordinance and shall be followed during 
implementation of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget for Jasper County.  
 
SECTION 10.  Lapsing of Funds and Continuing Appropriations for Subsequent 
Year.  Budget appropriations of monies received by County departments and existing at 
the close of the fiscal year shall revert to the appropriate fund of the County.  Departments 
wishing to carry over appropriations into the next succeeding fiscal year must submit the 
request in writing to the County Administrator no later than August 1, 2024, for approval 



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

by the County Council.  These carryovers must be for specific items budgeted in the 2023 
- 2024 fiscal year for which unforeseen circumstances prevented the funds from being spent 
during the current year.  Any “excess” funds accumulated at the end of the fiscal year shall 
be used only with the approval of County Council either to fund capital assets or other 
expenditures needed by the County or placed in the appropriate reserve fund by the County 
Administrator.  Departments charged with the proper keeping and reporting of County 
accounts shall maintain both revenue and expenditure ledgers, and under no circumstances, 
except in such instances as over-payment errors, authorized transfers, or supplemental 
appropriations, shall entries except those enumerated in this Ordinance, be recorded on 
appropriations and/or expenditure ledgers.  
 
Should the County Council in any subsequent year fail to enact an appropriation ordinance 
for Jasper County, the appropriation and tax levy herein set forth shall be the appropriation 
ordinance for such subsequent year for Jasper County. 
 
SECTION 11. Agencies and Departments to File Accounting.  Agencies or departments 
receiving appropriated funds under this ordinance, at the County Council’s request, shall 
file an accounting for use of such funds.  This accounting shall be available for examination 
or inspection by the citizens of Jasper County. 
 
SECTION 12. Treasurer to Sign Checks. The Jasper County Treasurer or the Treasurer’s 
designee shall sign all general fund checks. 
 
SECTION 13.  Special Rules for Travel and Training Disbursements.  The elected 
officials, appointed officials and/or department heads who receive an annual appropriation 
for travel and training shall be required to present an itemized statement and all appropriate 
receipts for reimbursement of the same.  No official or department head shall be reimbursed 
in excess of their annual appropriation unless such expenditures are approved in advance 
by the County Administrator. 
 
SECTION 14.  Travel Reimbursements.  All Jasper County employees who have reason 
to travel outside of Jasper County on official County business shall be reimbursed for same 
with respect to the County mileage rate and the latest approved subsistence schedule both 
of which are published in the Jasper County Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.     
All out of state travel must be approved in advance by the County Administrator. 
 
SECTION 15.  Compliance with Act No. 317 of 1990.  Section 1 of the Fiscal Year 2024–
2025 Budget Ordinance contains provisions for the rollback against County property tax 
of $3,926,400 of local option sales tax revenue for the fiscal year 2024-2025.  The 
$3,926,400 meets or exceeds the amount required as rollback in Act No. 317, 1990 Acts 
and Joint Resolutions 1822.  All other local option tax discount revenue shall become 
general fund expenditures, as budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget.  The local 
option sales tax discount factor for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 shall be .0007 which determines 
the amount of discount on individual tax bills.  The factor was determined by using the 
formula prescribed by Act No. 317, 1990 Acts and Joint Resolutions 1822. 
 
SECTION 16. Council Member Benefits.  The Council Members wishing to be on the 
County Health Insurance Plan may do so under the same guidelines as the other County 



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

employees.  Council Members, who do not choose to be on the County’s Health Insurance 
Plan, may be compensated with additional benefits not to exceed the value of a County 
employee’s health insurance benefit paid by the County.  Additional benefits that may be 
offered in lieu of health insurance include, but are not limited to, life insurance, dental 
insurance, existing 401K, new 401K accounts, existing IRA accounts or new IRA accounts, 
deferred compensation and credit union.  These benefits will be limited to those plans 
already in place by the County and the County Administrator will have full discretion as to 
which benefits are offered.  These benefits may not be exchanged for monetary 
compensation under any circumstances. 
 
SECTION 17.  Commission and Committee Stipends. This budget ordinance limits the 
payment of stipends to members of the Jasper County Planning Commission to one stipend 
per month in the amount of $100.00. These stipends shall be paid providing the member 
attends the scheduled meeting.  A quorum of the committees must be in attendance at the 
scheduled meeting for the stipend to be paid. The Board of Assessment Appeals and the 
Board of Zoning Appeals members will be paid an annual stipend of $500.00. 
 
SECTION 18.  Juror Mileage. The Clerk of Court is hereby authorized and required to 
reimburse jurors for mileage for each day’s attendance upon court at the current Internal 
Revenue Service published rate for mileage. 
 
SECTION 19.  Property Values Adopted. The property values established by the County 
Auditor, County Assessor and the South Carolina Department of Revenue, based on Dec. 
31, 2023, valuation are adopted and ordered implemented for tax year 2024. 
 
SECTION 20. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 2024. 

   
Jasper County Council  

 
      

     BY:  _________________________ 
       L. Martin Sauls IV, Chairman 
 
      _________________________ 
      Barbara Clark, Vice Chairman 
 
      __________________________ 
      John Kemp, Councilman 
 
      __________________________ 
      Coy Garbade, Councilman 
 

__________________________ 
      Joey Rowell, Councilman  
 
 
 
       



 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      _________________________ 
       Wanda H. Giles,   
       Clerk to Council 
Ordinance #O-2024-13 
First Reading:  5/06/2024 
Second Reading: 5/20/2024 
Public Hearings: 5/20/2024 
Adopted:   
  
Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.  
      
__________________________      _______________ 
David Tedder        Date 















Consent Agenda Item 



  

1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  
)  ORDINANCE NO. O-2024-10 

JASPER COUNTY   ) 

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN FEE 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA AND HARDEEVILLE INDUSTRIAL, LLC, AS SUCCESSOR 
TO SDKM COMMERCE, LLC, RELATING TO THE INVESTMENT 
PERIOD THEREUNDER; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 
 

 WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “Council”), is authorized by the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended, particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”): (a) to enter into a fee agreement 
with companies meeting the requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of 
such companies as economic development property, to induce such companies to locate in the 
State of South Carolina (the “State”) and to encourage companies now located in the State to 
expand their investments and thus make use of and employ workers and other resources of the 
State; and (b) to covenant with such companies to accept certain fees in lieu of ad valorem tax 
payments with respect to projects in the County;  
 
 WHEREAS, the County entered into that certain Fee Agreement dated as of February 22, 
2022 with SDKM Commerce, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Assignor”) (such Fee 
Agreement, the “FILOT Agreement”), wherein the County agreed to provide certain incentives 
with respect to the real property (and improvements and personal property located thereon) 
currently identified as TMS # 030-00-02-027 (and more particularly described in Exhibit A of the 
FILOT Agreement);  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption of Fee Agreement contemplated 
to be executed on or about May 31, 2024 among Assignor, the County, and Hardeeville Industrial, 
LLC (“Assignee”), Assignor will assign its interests in the FILOT Agreement to Assignee, and the 
County has consented to such assignment; 
 
 WHEREAS, Assignee has requested clarity regarding the Commencement Date and 
Investment Period under the FILOT Agreement (as the FILOT Agreement defines such terms) and 
has caused to be prepared and presented to the Council an amendment to the FILOT Agreement 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “FILOT Amendment”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Council hereby approves of the FILOT Amendment. 
 



 

2 

 Section 2.  The Council hereby authorizes the Chair of the Council and other County staff, 
along with any designees and agents any of these officials deem necessary and proper, including the 
County Attorney and County Administrator, in the name of and on behalf of the County (each, 
“Authorized Individual”), to take whatever further actions, and enter into whatever further 
agreements, as are allowed by law and as any Authorized Individual deems to be reasonably necessary 
in connection with this Ordinance to evidence the County’s acknowledgement and consent as 
described in this Ordinance, including specifically the FILOT Amendment attached hereto as Exhibit 
A.  The FILOT Amendment shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such 
changes thereto as may be approved by the County Attorney or the County Administrator, such 
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the County’s execution of the FILOT Amendment. 
 

Section 3.  The County acknowledges that: (a) this Ordinance authorizes the County’s consent 
to the FILOT Amendment; and (b) no further County action is required in order for the FILOT 
Amendment to be effective. 

 

Section 4.  All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict with this Ordinance are, to the 
extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage by the Council. 

 

[ONE SIGNATURE PAGE AND ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOW] 
 



 

 

Approved and adopted:  

May 20, 2024 

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:        
Barbara B. Clark 
Vice Chair, Jasper County Council 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

By:       
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council, Jasper County Council 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
By:       

David Tedder 
Jasper County Attorney 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
FORM OF FILOT AMENDMENT 

  



 

 

AMENDMENT TO FILOT AGREEMENT 

 This Amendment to FILOT Agreement (the “FILOT Amendment”) is entered to this ____ 
day of ______________, 2024 by and between JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the 
“County”) and HARDEEVILLE INDUSTRIAL, LLC (the “Company”). 

 WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council”), is 
authorized by the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, particularly Title 12, 
Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”): (a) to enter into a fee agreement with companies meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such companies as economic 
development property, to induce such companies to locate in the State of South Carolina (the 
“State”) and to encourage companies now located in the State to expand their investments and thus 
make use of and employ workers and other resources of the State; and (b) to covenant with such 
companies to accept certain fees in lieu of ad valorem tax payments with respect to projects in the 
County;  
 
 WHEREAS, the County entered into that certain Fee Agreement dated as of February 22, 
2022 with SDKM Commerce, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Assignor”) (the 
“FILOT Agreement”), wherein the County agreed to provide certain incentives with respect to the 
real property (and improvements and personal property located thereon) currently identified as 
TMS # 030-00-02-027 (and more particularly described in Exhibit A of the FILOT Agreement);  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Assignment and Assumption of Fee Agreement dated 
[____________], 2024 among Assignor, the County, and the Company, Assignor assigned its 
interests in the FILOT Agreement to the Company, and the County consented to such assignment; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has requested clarity regarding the Commencement Date and 
Investment Period under the FILOT Agreement (as the FILOT Agreement defines such terms), 
and by ordinance dated [______________, 2024], the County has approved the execution and 
delivery of this FILOT Amendment. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the County and the 
Company hereby agree as follows: 
 

1.  Section 5.01(p) is hereby added to the FILOT Agreement to provide as follows: 
 
The County and the Company understand that the Commencement Date must begin no later than 
the last day of the property tax year which is three years from the year in which the County and 
the Company entered into this Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement (which is December 31, 2025), and 
the County and Company further agree that this three-year deadline is a deadline for the 
commencement of the Investment Period, not a deadline for the Company to place assets in service.  
If, however, it is determined that the three-year deadline is a deadline for the Company to place 
assets in service and a failure by the Company to do so results in a termination of this Fee-in-Lieu 
of Tax Agreement, the County and Company agree that this Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement shall 
be automatically converted, with no further action of the County or Company, to a Special Source 
Revenue Credit Agreement with special source revenue credits to be determined annually in a 



 

 

manner that results in the Company receiving exactly the same level of savings that the FILOT 
incentive and Special Source Revenue Credits under this Fee Agreement would have provided 
over the same term that the FILOT incentives would have been in place.  In such case, the County 
and Company agree to work in good faith to implement the conversion of the Fee Agreement to a 
Special Source Revenue Credit Agreement. 
 
 2.  Except as specifically modified above, the FILOT Agreement remains in full force and 
effect. 

 3.  This FILOT Amendment is effective as of the date and year first written above. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through its County Council, has 
caused this FILOT Amendment to be executed it its name and behalf by the Council Chair and to 
be attested by the Clerk to Council; and the Company has caused this FILOT Amendment to be 
executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

 

       JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

      By:         
Barbara B. Clark 
Vice Chair, Jasper County Council 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

By:       
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council, Jasper County Council 

 
 
      HARDEEVILLE INDUSTRIAL, LLC 
  

      By:         
      Name:        
      Title:         
 
 
 
 



 

Jasper County Emergency Services 
1509 Grays Hwy (P.O.B. 1509) 

Ridgeland, SC 29936 

Office: 843-726-7607 Fax: 843-726-7966 
Chief Russell W. Wells, Director              Deputy Chief Darran Vaughn  

13, May 2024 

 

To: Honorable Jasper County Council Members 

 

Re: Request for portable public safety radio cache 

 

Greetings Honorable Council Members, 

 The Emergency Services Division is seeking the acquisition of ten (10) portable public safety radios. We 

have exhausted our cache of radios due to growth and expansion of personnel within the public safety roles of 

the County. Currently we do not have spare portable radios or a small cache that could augment public safety 

personnel in the response and mitigation of a large scale incident. We are requesting authorization to expend 

an amount not to exceed $83,000 from the radio maintenance line in our 911 Communications budget (010-

048-2410. Historically, we would assign the radio to field operatives in the event of a portable radio being out 

of service for repair. But again, due to growth within the County; we exhausted our previous cache of radios 

and are seeking to replenish the cache. These radios are under South Carolina state contract #4400021163. 

However, the expense exceeds the authority of the administrator. Therefore, we are requesting the 

administrator receive authority to enact the acquisition of these public safety portable radios.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Russell Wells 

Director/Fire Chief, Jasper County Emergency Services Division 

      



Change Order

PROJECT (Name and address) :                    CHANGE ORDER NUMBER:                                                    1 OWNER X
Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport
AWOS III P/T Project DATE: 5/13/2024 ENGINEER X

TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address):     ENGINEER’S PROJECT NO. SC1001-18 CONTRACTOR X
Trinity Electrical Services, Inc.
2317 Golden Isle W Apt 4 NTP DATE: 6/3/2024 FIELD X
Baxley, GA 31513

CONTRACT FOR: AWOS III P/T OTHER

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS:
(Include, where applicable, any undisputed amount attributable to previously executed Construction Change Orders)

The Contract Time will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by: 0 Days

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is:

NOTE: This Change Order does not include changes in the Contract Sum or Contract Time  which have been authorized by
Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and Contractor, in which case a 
Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive.

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER.

HOLT CONSULTING COMPANY LLC    TRINITY ELECTRICAL SERVICES, 
ENGINEER (Firm name) CONTRACTOR (Firm name) OWNER (Firm name)

2801 DEVINE STREET, SUITE 201 
COLUMBIA, SC 29205                              

2317 Golden Isle W Apt 4             
Baxley, GA 31513

ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS

BY (Signature) BY (Signature) BY (Signature)

KEVIN MORRIS CHAD HUTCHINSON
(Typed name) (Typed name) (Typed name)

DATE DATE DATE

This change order is a NON-AIP work addition by Owner. It includes adding the fiber optic communication between the AWOS and the 
Terminal building, additional fiber optic cable between AWOS and Terminal for County security cameras, directional bores under 
existing pavement, junction can plazas for wire pulling/maintenance, chain link fence and gate at AWOS site, and gravel drive/pads at 
the AWOS site.  Several of these items had previously been taken out of the contract to meet FAA budget.  The Owner decided they 
want the wired connection for communication stability and will pay for the extra work with County funds.  The added pay items are 
shown on Page 2 of this Change Order. 

7/26/2024

358 THIRD AVENUE      RIDGELAND, SC 
29936

JASPER COUNTY

ANDREW FULGHUM

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of  $                 87,346.50 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be  $              374,416.50 

The original Contract Sum was  $              287,070.00 

The net change by previously authorized Change Orders  $                                -   

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was  $              287,070.00 

Change Order #1 Page CO1-1 of CO1-2 3J1 AWOS



Bid Item # Spec. No. Description Est. Qty. Unit CO Price Total

2 P-152 Unclassified Excavation 50 CY 50.00$               $           2,500.00 

5 SC-300A SCDOT No. 57 Aggregate Access Drive (6" Thick) 182 SY 104.00$             $         18,928.00 

6 SC-300B SCDOT No. 57 Aggregate AWOS Equipment Pad (6" Thick) 49 SY 108.00$             $           5,292.00 

9 L-108-2 Single Fiber Optic Cable - AWOS Communication 1,650 LF  $                4.40  $           7,260.00 

9 L-108-2 Single Fiber Optic Cable - Future Jasper County Security Camera 1,650 LF  $                4.40  $           7,260.00 

11 L-109-2 Communications Cabinet, 24"x24"x12" (Complete with Data Cabling & 
Termination Equipment) 1 EA  $         4,200.00  $           4,200.00 

16 L-110-1 Install 1 way 2” Schedule 40 PVC, Direct Buried in Trench 975 LF  $                6.00  $           5,850.00 

18 L-110-3 Install Trench & Backfill 975 LF  $                1.10  $           1,072.50 

20 L-115-1 Install Junction Can Plaza [2-Way] 3 EA  $         2,500.00  $           7,500.00 

21 L-115-2 Install Handhole, Precast Concrete, Tier 22 1 EA  $         1,550.00  $           1,550.00 

NEW F-162 Chain Link Fence (6' Fabric Height Plus 1' ~ 3-strand barbed wire, 
Galvanized, with Grounding, Concrete Footings for Fence Posts) 168 LF  $              38.00  $           6,384.00 

NEW F-162 12' Wide Dual-Leaf Chain Link Manual Swing Gate 1 EA  $         4,200.00  $           4,200.00 

NEW - 2" Directional Bore 525 LF  $              34.00  $         17,850.00 

87,346.50$     NON-AIP CHANGE ORDER 1 INITIAL AMOUNT

ATTACHMENT B: CHANGE ORDER 1 - NON-AIP FIBER OPTIC COMMUNICATIONS

AWOS III P/T Project

FAA A.I.P. No. 3-45-0048-018-2023
Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport      

Fiber Optic Communication Line (AWOS & Security), Fencing, Gravel at AWOS, Directional Bore

Change Order #1 Page CO1-2 of CO1-2 3J1 AWOS



X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X

79

78

79

79

78.5

78.5

79.5

80

8079.5

79.5

79

78.578.40

78.40

79.20

79.10
79.06

79.15
78.83

78.90

79.00
79.00

78.75

80.00

80.10

80.00
78.60

STA 120+44.41 R/W 18-36
OFF 486.57' LT

STA 120+66.91 R/W 18-36
OFF 482.57' LT

STA 120+66.91 R/W 18-36
OFF 466.57' LT

STA 120+44.41 R/W 18-36
OFF 498.07' LT

STA 120+90.91 R/W 18-36
OFF 507.57' LT

STA 121+08.06 R/W 18-36
OFF 507.57' LT

STA 121+06.91 R/W 18-36
OFF 466.57' LT

STA 120+51.65 R/W 18-36
OFF 423.56' LT

STA 120+99.91 R/W 18-36
OFF 500.57' LT

SFSFSFSFSF

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

16
'

40'

10'R

10'R

10'R

10'

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

EXISTING SEGMENTED
CIRCLE AT WIND CONE

MATCH GRADES TO
EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

CONSTRUCT 182 SY OF
SCDOT #57 GRAVEL DRIVE
SEE DETAIL 1, THIS SHEET

INSTALL TEMPORARY SILT
FENCE ALONG LOW SIDE OF
DISTURBED GRADED AREA

CONSTRUCT 37 SY OF SCDOT
#57 GRAVEL PAD AROUND
AWOS EQUIPMENT
SEE DETAIL 2, THIS SHEET

CONSTRUCT 12 SY OF SCDOT
#57 GRAVEL PAD AROUND

AWOS EQUIPMENT
SEE DETAIL 2, THIS SHEET

CONSTRUCT 12' WIDE X 6'
TALL MANUAL SWING GATE

CONSTRUCT 168 LF OF 6'
TALL CHAIN LINK FENCE W/
1' BARBED WIRE (3-STRAND)

LEGEND

EXISTING GRAVEL

NEW #57 GRAVEL SURFACE

NEW AWOS EQUIPMENT CONCRETE PAD

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS395

395

SF

RIDGELAND - CLAUDE
DEAN AIRPORT

RIDGELAND, SOUTH CAROLINA

SC1001-18

AWOS III P/T PROJECT

100% - SEPTEMBER 2022

3-45-0048-016-2021
Designer:

Submittal / Issue Date:

Sheet Name:

Project Name:

DescriptionNo. Date By
REVISIONS

Scale:

Technician:

1

CAD File:

Drawing Number:Plotted:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

Sheet              of

Notes:

FAA A.I.P. Project Number: Holt Project Number:

Checked by:

www.holtconsultingco.com

2801 Devine Street, Suite 201

803.771.4658
Columbia, SC 29205

CONSULTING COMPANY, LLC.

I
OHOLT CONSULTING

U

OS

CHT ORA
N

A

IL

No.

OHTUAO F

Z
R

I
A

N
T

ET
A

I C
FI

R
E

C
T COMPANY LLC

4831

SCALE : 1"=10'

10 0 10 20

N
CONCRETE PAD
ELEV: 78.75

CONCRETE PAD
ELEV: 79.50

CONCRETE PAD
ELEV: 79.50

NEW P-152
COMPACTED

SUBGRADE

NOT TO SCALE
2

GRAVEL PAD TYPICAL SECTION

1 1
4 4

6" DEEP SWALE -
GRADED TO DRAIN

10%10%

IN FILL IN CUT

ACCESS ROAD CENTERLINE

10:1
TIE SLOPE

4'
SHOULDER

EXISTING GROUND

4'
SHOULDER

NEW 6" SCDOT #57
AGGREGATE SURFACE

10' WIDE

NOT TO SCALE
1

GRAVEL ACCESS ROAD TYPICAL SECTION

2%

0.10'
DROP

NEW 6" SCDOT #57
AGGREGATE SURFACE

1. REFER TO DRAWING E 301 FOR MORE
DETAILED LAYOUT AND DIMENSIONING OF
THE AWOS SITE COMPONENTS.

2. ALL STATION/OFFSETS ARE REFERENCED
TO RUNWAY 18-36 CENTERLINE. STAKING
DATA WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE
CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

      Y      Y      Y      Y      Y      Y

AWOS SITE PLAN
AND DETAILS

K. MORRIS B. CAGLE R. HOUNSHELL

N.T.S. C1.01
ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION - AUGUST 2023

  1    REVISE SCOPE - IFC                    8-01-23    CKM

NOTE: AS A COST SAVING MEASURE,
GRADING AND INSTALLATION OF GRAVEL
BASE HAS BEEN REDUCED IN SCOPE.
INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE
IS ALSO DELETED. CONSTRUCT CONCRETE
PADS FOR AWOS EQUIPMENT AT THE
LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS SHOWN.

  1

  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYH

KMorris
Callout
Minimal Grading as required to construct gravel

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line



U
N

PAVED
 ACCESS D

R
IVE

HOUSE

SHED

SHED

EXIST. INTERIM
TERMINAL

G

G

G

XX

XX

X

XXXX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX

XXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

G

G

G

GG

G

G

X
X

XX XX XX X
X

X
X

XX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XX

XXXXXXXXXX

XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXX

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X XX XX XX

X
X

P
7
7

TAXIWAY

TA
X

IW
A

Y 
`A

2
´

RUNWAY 18-36 ~ 3,200' X 75' RUNWAY 18-36 ~ 3,200' X 75'

TAXIWAY `A´

TO HAMPTON

TA
XI

W
AY

 `
A3

´

TAXIWAY A

TA
XI

W
A

Y 
A

TA
XI

W
A

Y 
A

1

TA
XI

W
A

Y 
A

2

G

G

G

XX

XXX

X

XXXX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX

XXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

G

G

G

GG

G

G

X
X

XX XX XX X
X

X
X

XX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XX

XXXXXXXXXX

XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXX

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X XX XX XX

X
X

D

O
H

P

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP
EXISTING
POWER
POLE

FM

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM
FM

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

SS

P
7
7

BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL

BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL BRL

ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA

ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA

RPZ
RPZ

OFA

TSA TSA TSA

TS
A

TSA

TS
A

OFA

TSA

OFA

TSA TSA TSA

TS
A

OFA OFA OFA

TSA TSA TSA

TS
A

OFA OFA OFA

P
7
7

TSA TSATSATSA

TSA

TAXIWAY `A1´

EXISTING LIGHTING VAULT

EXISTING UNPAVED DRIVE

CONSTRUCTION
STAGING/STORAGE
AREA

EXISTING GLIDER
HANGAR AREA

EXISTING WIND SOCK AND
SEGMENTED CIRCLE

GRAVEL POND
ACCESS DRIVE

HAUL/ACCESS ROUTE FOR
AWOS PROJECT

CONSTRUCT AWOS III P/T
AND AWOS SITE (BY AWOS

CONTRACTOR). INCLUDE NEW
FENCING, GATE AND GRAVEL

DRIVE

CONTRACTOR TO USE THIS GATE
FOR ACCESS TO AWOS SITE. KEEP
GATE CLOSED AND LOCKED
DURING NON-WORK PERIODS

INTERIM TERMINAL LOCATION. NEW
AWOS COMPUTER CONTROLS TO BE

LOCATED HERE. ANTENNA MOUNTED TO
TERMINAL ROOF.

EXISTING 3-WAY 3" EMPTY
CONDUITS UNDER RUNWAY
AND TAXIWAY

NEW AWOS POWER AND FIBER
OPTIC LINES TO BE ROUTED
THROUGH EXISTING 3"
CONDUITS UNDER THE RUNWAY

PHASE 2:
PLACE VINYL RUNWAY CLOSURE MARKERS
AT EACH END OF RUNWAY. SEE DETAIL,
DWG G1.03

CE

ROUTE 2 NEW FIBER OPTIC
CABLES TO EXISTING TERMINAL

 AWOS III P/T
TOWER PAD

DCP, SENSOR,
AC PAD

LIGHTNING
SENSOR PAD

X

X

± 230 LF ~ NEW 2" DIRECTIONAL
BORE UNDER APRON PAVEMENT AND

EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE (FOR 2
FIBER OPTIC LINES).

EXISTING 2" EMPTY CONDUIT (±210
LF UNDER EXISTING APRON)

± 270 LF ~ NEW 2" DIRECTIONAL BORE
UNDER PARKING/ROADWAY PAVEMENT
AND EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE (FOR
AWOS POWER CIRCUIT).

±25 LF OF 2" DIRECTIONAL BORE UNDER
EXISTING FENCE (CONNECT TO EXISTING
2" CONDUIT UNDER APRON)

NEW AWOS POWER CABINET TO
BE LOCATED ON EXISTING FIELD
PANEL HERE

NEW AWOS POWER AND FIBER
OPTIC LINES TO BE ROUTED
THROUGH EXISTING 3"
CONDUITS UNDER THE RUNWAY

NEW AWOS POWER AND FIBER
OPTIC LINES TO BE ROUTED
THROUGH NEW DIRECT BURY 2"
CONDUIT (INSTALLED BY AWOS
CONTRACTOR)

NEW AWOS POWER AND FIBER
OPTIC LINES TO BE ROUTED

THROUGH NEW 2" CONDUITS IN
INFIELD (INSTALLED BY AWOS

CONTRACTOR)

2-WAY JUNCTION CAN PLAZA
FOR POWER/FIBER CONDUITS

2-WAY JUNCTION CAN PLAZA
FOR POWER/FIBER CONDUITS
(JUST OUTSIDE RSA)

2-WAY JUNCTION CAN PLAZA
FOR POWER/FIBER CONDUITS

TAXIWAY SAFETY AREA (TSA)

TAXIWAY OBJECT FREE AREA (TOFA)

RUNWAY SAFETY AREA (RSA)

RUNWAY OBJECT FREE AREA (ROFA)

ACCESS / HAUL ROUTE

CONTRACTOR STAGING AND STORAGE

AWOS III P/T PROJECT SITE - OUTSIDE RSA

AWOS III P/T PROJECT SIDE - INSIDE RSA

TSA

TOFA

LEGEND
PROJECT LIMITS

AIRPORT PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING FENCE

EXISTING STABILIZED
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

EXISTING GATE

TEMPORARY RUNWAY
CLOSURE MARKER

G

XX XX XX XX

CE

RSA

ROFA

RIDGELAND - CLAUDE
DEAN AIRPORT

RIDGELAND, SOUTH CAROLINA

SC1001-18

AWOS III P/T PROJECT

100% - SEPTEMBER 2022

3-45-0048-016-2021
Designer:

Submittal / Issue Date:

Sheet Name:

Project Name:

DescriptionNo. Date By
REVISIONS

Scale:

Technician:

1

CAD File:

Drawing Number:Plotted:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

Sheet              of

Notes:

FAA A.I.P. Project Number: Holt Project Number:

Checked by:

www.holtconsultingco.com

2801 Devine Street, Suite 201

803.771.4658
Columbia, SC 29205

CONSULTING COMPANY, LLC.

I
OHOLT CONSULTING

U

OS

CHT ORA
N

A

IL

No.

OHTUAO F

Z
R

I
A

N
T

ET
A

I C
FI

R
E

C
T COMPANY LLC

4831

N

      Y      Y      Y      Y      Y      Y

AWOS
DIRECTIONAL BORE AND

CONDUIT PLAN

K. MORRIS B. CAGLE R. HOUNSHELL

1" = 100 G1.04

SCALE : 1"=100'

100 0 100 200

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION - AUGUST 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
RA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
RA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCT BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCP-3-36

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCP-T-35

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3A10,12

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"C-3#4/0, 1#4G

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3A13,15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"C-3#8, 1#10G

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW VAULT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAPI POWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
AV

AutoCAD SHX Text
AV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF UHF ANTENNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-867 SIZE B JUNCTION CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYH

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line

KMorris
Line



 

   

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by 
 

Lisa M. Ouellette, CPCU, CAIP - Gold 
 

JCL Aviation Services, LLC 
109 Keller Springs Court 

Bluffton, SC 29910 
 

Phone: (843) 757-2983 
 

 

 
Jasper County, South Carolina 

Aviation General Liability Insurance Proposal 
Policy Term: June 1, 2024 to June 1, 2025 

 
 

 



 

 
2 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
This proposal has been prepared by JCL Aviation Services based on exposures and 
information supplied to us by you.  From time to time, these exposures may change, or 
you may enter into leases, contracts or other agreements that may transfer obligations to 
you.  These additional exposures should be brought to our attention immediately in order 
to be properly included for coverage. Please remember that you are responsible for 
determining the property values used to issue your policy – JCL Aviation would be 
pleased to assist you in this determination. 
 
While the proposal indicates the basic coverage included, the actual policies issued by 
the insuring companies will contain the legally binding terms and conditions.  Upon receipt 
of the policies, we urge you to thoroughly review them for accuracy and expected 
coverage.  If you have any questions regarding your understanding or acceptance, please 
notify us immediately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
3 

 

AVIATION GENERAL LIABILTIY 
INSURANCE PROPOSAL 

 
NAMED INSURED: Jasper County, South Carolina   
 
MAILING ADDRESS: 358 3rd Ave., Box 1149 
 Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
POLICY PERIOD: From June 1, 2024, to June 1, 2025 at 12:01 A.M. local time at 

the address of the Named Insured set forth above. 
 
INSURER:   Endurance American Insurance Co. (Through W. Brown & 

Associates, 19000 MacArthur, Suite 600, Irvine, CA 92612) 
 
CLAIM REPORTING:   
 Initial Contact:  Standard Incidents & Accidents 
    JCL Aviation Services:  843-757-2983 
 Initial Contact:  Emergency 
    W. Brown & Associates:  949-852-2060 
 
POLICY NUMBER:  To Be Determined 
 
POLICY FORM: Aviation Commercial General Liability Policy (NAF2000 (1215)) 
 
PREMISES  
DESCRIPTION: Ridgeland – Claude Dean Airport 
 134 Airport Rd. 
 Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
ADDITIONAL INSURED: Titan Aviation Fuels, Inc., P.O. Box 12327, New Bern, NC 28561-

2327 (With Respect to Fuel Agreement) $500,000. Each 
Occurrence 

 
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS:  

• Titan Aviation Fuels, Inc. 
• Whom It May Concern 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
4 

 

LIABILITY COVERAGES: 
 
BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY 
Each Occurrence Limit:  $10,000,000. 
The insurer will pay those sums, which the insured becomes legally 
obligated to pay as damages because of “bodily injury” or “property 
damage” arising out of your “airport operations”. 
“Airport operations” means the ownership, maintenance, use or provision 
of premises, services, and facilities necessary or incidental to the 
operation of the “airport”. 
 
GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMIT: $20,000,000. 
 
DEDUCTIBLES: 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Per Claim (Currently $10,000.): $5,000. 
Per Aircraft Deductible (Currently $10,000.): $5,000. 
Per Aircraft Deductible as Respects to Jet & Turbine Powered Aircraft: $10,000. 
Per Loss:  Unlimited 
 
PERSONAL INJURY AND ADVERTISING INJURY LIABILITY 
Limit Any One Offense/Aggregate: $10,000,000. 
“Personal injury” means injury, other than “bodily injury”, arising out of one 
or more of the following offenses:  mistaken arrest, detention, or 
imprisonment; malicious prosecution; the wrongful eviction from, wrongful 
entry into, or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a room, dwelling 
or premises that a person occupies by or on behalf of its owner, landlord, 
or lessor;  oral or written publication of material that slanders or libels a 
person or organization or disparages a person’s or organization’s goods, 
products, or services; oral or written publication or material that violates a 
person’s right of privacy; or misdirection of a person to an aircraft or other 
conveyance. 
“Advertising Injury” means injury arising out of one or more of the following 
offenses:  oral or written publication of materials that slanders or libels a 
person or organization or disparages a person’s or organization’s goods, 
products or services; oral or written publication of material that violates a 
person’s right of privacy; misappropriation of advertising ideas or style of 
doing business; or infringement of copyright, title or slogan. 
 
FIRE LEGAL LIABILITY 
Any One Occurrence: $50,000. 
Provides liability coverage for damage caused by the peril of fire, to 
property rented by the Named Insured. 
 



 

 
5 

 

 
PREMISES MEDICAL EXPENSES 
Each Person: $5,000. 
Each Accident: $20,000. 
Underwriters shall pay all reasonable medical expenses incurred within 
one year from the date of injury. Expenses include first aid at the time of 
an accident, necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and dental services and 
necessary ambulance, hospital professional nursing and funeral services. 
 
CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY 
Each Occurrence Limit: $10,000,000. 
Provides liability coverage assumed in a contract or agreement that is an 
“insured contract” provided the “bodily injury” or “property damage” occurs 
subsequent to the execution of the contract or agreement; or that the 
Insured would have in the absence of the contract or agreement.  
Contracts must be submitted and approved by the Underwriter within 30 
days of inception, or within 30 days after the effective date of the contract, 
whichever is last; however, failure to submit such contracts shall not 
invalidate the coverage afforded.   
 
ON AIRPORT PREMISES AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE 
Each Occurrence Limit: $10,000,000. 
Pays those sums that the insured is legally obligated to pay as damages 
because of bodily injury or property damage to which this insurance 
applies, caused by an accident and resulting from the ownership, 
maintenance, or use of a covered auto.  
 
PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS  
Each Occurrence / Aggregate Limit: $10,000,000. 
Pays those sums that the insured is legally obligated to pay as damages 
because of bodily injury or property damage included within the Products-
Completed Operations Hazard. 
 
HANGARKEEPERS’ LIABILITY  
Each Aircraft Limit: $100,000. 
Each Loss Limit: $100,000. 
Per Aircraft Deductible (Currently $10,000): $5,000. 
Per Aircraft Deductible as Respects to Jet & Turbine Powered Aircraft: $10,000. 
Per Loss:  Unlimited 
Pays those sums that the insured is legally obligated to pay as damages 
for loss to aircraft while the aircraft is in the care, custody, or control of the 
insured for safekeeping, storage, service, or repair.  
 



 

 
6 

 

HOST LIQUOR LIABILITY 
Each Occurrence Limit:  $10,000,000. 
Extends coverage for claims arising from serving of alcoholic beverages, 
if the beverages are not served for profit, on airport premises.  
 
POLICY TERMS & CONDITIONS: 
 
WAR, HI-JACKING AND OTHER PERILS COVERAGE 
Liability Limit Each Occurrence / Aggregate: $10,000,000. 
Aircraft Liability Coverage is provided for the following War and Allied 
Perils: 

a) war, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities (whether war be 
declared or not), civil war, rebellion, revolution, insurrection, martial 
law, military, or usurpation of power 

b) strikes, riots, civil commotions, or labor disputes. 

c) Any act of one or more persons, whether or not agents of a 
sovereign power, for political or terrorist purposes and whether the 
loss or damage resulting there from is accidental or intentional.  

d) Any malicious act or act of sabotage. 

e) Confiscation, nationalization, seizure, restraint, detention, 
appropriation, requisition for title or use by or under the order of any 
Government (whether civil, military, or de facto) or public or local 
authority. 

f) Hi-jacking or any unlawful seizure or wrongful exercise of control of 
the aircraft. 

Cancellation: This coverage is subject to cancellation, review of 
geographical limits and premium upon seven (7) days notice or 
immediately upon outbreak of war between any of the major world powers. 
 
CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM COVERAGE Included 
 
REPORTING OF CLAIMS As Soon As Possible 
 
DATE CHANGE RECOGNITION ENDORSEMENT Included 
 
DEFENSE COSTS ARE IN ADDITION TO THE LIMITS 
 
BAIL BONDS $1,000. 



 

 
7 

 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 
The policy may be cancelled by giving written notice to the Insurer at any 
time. The Insurer may cancel the policy by mailing written notice to the 
Named Insured giving not less than thirty (30) days’ notice of such 
cancellation ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of premium.  
 
NOTICE OF NONRENEWAL 90 Days 
 
SOUTH CAROLINA ENDORSEMENT Included 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
8 

 

MAJOR EXCLUSIONS: 
 
• Care, Custody, Control Exclusion 
 
• Noise, Pollution, & Other Perils Exclusion  
 
• Worker’s Compensation & Similar Law Exclusion 
 
• Employers Liability Exclusion 
 
• Employment-Related Practices 
 
• Professional Health Care Services 
 
• Asbestos Exclusion Endorsement 
 
• Nuclear Energy Liability Exclusion Clause 
 
• Radioactive Contamination Exclusion 
 
• Expected or Intended Injury Exclusion 
 
• Air Traffic Control Operations Exclusion 
 
• Damage to Property 
 
• Damaged to Impaired Property or Property Not Physically Injured 
 
• Recall of Product, Work, or Impaired Property 
 
• Excluded Events:  Contest, Exhibition, Air Meet, Air Race, Airshow: permitted, 

sponsored, or participated in. 
 
• Government Appropriation  

 
 
 
Notes:  All other coverages per carrier’s standard policy form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
9 

 

PREMIUM SUMMARY 
 
 
W. BROWN & ASSOCIATES 
Member Companies     AM Best Rating   Annual Premium 
Endurance Risk Solutions Assurance Co.                    A+ $17,843. 
 
 
Notes:  
 
The premiums shown above include 15% commission for the servicing of this program. 
 
 The total annual premium for the term of June 1, 2023 to June 1, 2024 was 

$16,538.   
 
 Any applicable taxes are in addition to the premiums shown above. 
 
 JCL Aviation Services, LLC is required to pay premiums to insurers on a monthly 

basis.  In return we appreciate timely payments by our clients.  Outstanding 
balances over 30 days may be subject to cancellation. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
10 

 

 
CLIENT AUTHORIZATION TO BIND COVERAGE 

 
 
To: JCL AVIATION SERVICES, LLC 
 
After careful review of your proposal dated April 26, 2024, we have decided to accept the 
proposal options checked below with the following changes (if any): 
 
AVIATION GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE                            PREMIUM  
W. BROWN & ASSOCIATES 
 

 Total Annual Premium: $17,843. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
EXCEPTIONS: 
 
Please have a binder(s) issued and your invoice prepared for the agreed-upon coverages at 
your earliest convenience. 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________ 
         Client Signature             Date 
 
 
JCL Aviation Services, LLC are required to pay premiums to insurers on a monthly basis.  In 
return, we appreciate timely payments by our clients.  Outstanding balances over 30 days may 
be subject to cancellation. 



 Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

Kimberly Burgess, CPA 
Director of Administrative Services 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council  
Fuel Farm Directional Bore 

Bid Presentation 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Subject:  Presentation of bids for fuel farm directional bore 

Recommendation: Council accepts the bid from CAB Installers, Inc.in the amount of $17,573.04 
to provide a directional bore from Grays Highway West to the location of the 
airport fuel farm located at Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport and to authorize the 
County Administrator to execute all documents necessary to complete the 
project.  

Description:  Jasper County advertised for sealed bids for a directional bore approximately 625 feet 
from Grays Highway to the location of the airport fuel farm located at Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport. 
The bids were due on May 8, 2024, at 3:00 PM. One (1) bid was received. The bidder is CAB Installers, 
Inc., with a bid of $17,573.04 (excluding, if any, applicable sales tax.)   

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the County Council accept the bid from CAB Installers, Inc., 
in the amount of $17,573.04 and authorize the County Administrator to execute all documents necessary 
to complete the project.      

Attachments:   
CAB Installers, Inc. Bid 
Bid Tab Sheet 
Invitation to Bid Advertisement 
Invitation to Bid  

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov










Com�Name 
• J 

C �6 :r�l).Jl�r'-5, �. 

Jasper County <Bit£ Slieet 
EIA.tj 

Address- - --

9'\ Lo� �.,,J

f=--Q--(" ...-. �, c u;:k-l)r-:J �rt.. 
::rv °\ s � .;i..Q,;). 'f--'1 
l'J'-.q...i �,1...Di-'f 3•. 00 p,.,..._

Amount of Bid 

� l v,.....,f-�'"' \ .5 c... � '\ 'i " � � l 1/;13. o 'j 

Remarks/Total 



From: Kimberly Burgess

To: Danny Lucas

Subject: FW: SCBO Advertisement Submission

Date: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 3:53:00 PM

FYI
 
From: South Carolina Business Opportunities <noreply@mmo.sc.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 3:43 PM
To: Kimberly Burgess <kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov>
Subject: SCBO Advertisement Submission

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

NOTICE:
Your SCBO password is good only for 90 days.  Upon receiving a reminder to renew
your password, you have six (6) days to do so.  If you wait any longer, you'll be locked
out.  Please avoid a lockout by renewing your password on time every 90 days or
sooner!

Your SCBO advertisement (AD# 48482) has been submitted and will be reviewed by a member of our staff prior to
publication. Please retain a copy of this email to serve as a receipt of your ad submission.

Please note that ads submitted after 12:00 pm may not be reviewed/published until the next business day.

The information you submitted for the advertisement is included below:

Category: Minor Construction

Advertisement Date: Wed, 04/24/2024 - 00:00

Project Name: Fuel Farm Directional Bore

Project Number: IVTB #2024-17

Project Location: Ridgeland, SC

Description of Project/Services:
Jasper County is seeking sealed bids for Directional Bore approximately 625 feet from Grays Highway (U.S. 278)
West to the location of the airport fuel farm located at Ridgeland – Claude Dean Airport. A minimum 13 x 24 x 12
bulk vault with lid, 2” pipe conduit, line locate, switch gear, labor, rental equipment, and other miscellaneous
materials, supplies, equipment, parts, and services as specified by the Airport Electrical Engineer, Mark Morley,
The Ohmega Group, Inc.

Quote Due Date/Time: Wed, 05/08/2024 - 15:00

Construction Cost Range: 10,000 - 100,000

Agency Project Coordinator: Danny Lucas

Email: dlucas@jaspercountysc.gov

mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:dlucas@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:dlucas@jaspercountysc.gov


Telephone:

Project Details: https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/financial-administrative-services/bids-solicitati…

Ad Creation Date: Wed, 04/24/2024 - 15:42

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.jaspercountysc.gov%2ffinancial-administrative-services%2fbids-solicitations&c=E,1,SuiBug5DL-UEVcn07dPnuoaSFtqi0n8V7508l9iTxRONP7bxid78pn1rRomvaguhUj7zf2l9igF0t8mSKFNH7HrwbkY4bF03ABNcUinwnUAnJWs7rfZOf4HWmis,&typo=1


 

 
Fuel Farm Directional Bore  

INVITATION TO BID #2024–17  
 

 

 

April 24, 2024 

 

SkyBlue Aviation  

Ridgeland – Claude Dean Airport 

Development Services Division 
  



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 1 
 

 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED, AS INDICATED BELOW ON OR 
BEFORE 3:00 PM, WEDNESDAY,  MAY 8, 2024. 
 

Issue Invitation to Bid   April 24, 2024 

Deadline for Inquiries   April 29, 2024 

Response to Inquiries   April 30, 2024 

Deadline for Submitting Bids   May 8, 2024 

 
I. PURPOSE 

Jasper County, SC is soliciting sealed bids from qualified contractors for work 
described herein.  

II. INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 

1. Bid Opening Location 
The Bids will be opened at the Clementa Pinckney Government Building, 
Council Chambers, Third Floor, 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936. 
Bids will be opened on the due date, Wednesday, May 8, 2024 at 3:00 pm.  
All bidders or their representatives are invited to attend the bid opening. 

2.  Bid Delivery  
Any Bids received after the stated date and time will not be considered.  It is the 
bidder’s sole responsibility to deliver its bid to the Jasper County Administrative 
Services Division Procurement Office for receipt on or before the due date and 
time indicated.  If a Bid is delivered by U.S. Mail, the bidder shall be responsible 
for its timely delivery to the Procurement Office.  Bids delayed by mail shall not 
be considered and shall be rejected.  Bids may be mailed to the Procurement 
Office and accepted if the signed bid forms and required submittals were mailed 
and received prior to the due date and time.  Bids forwarded by email will not 
be accepted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 2 
 

3.   Sealed and Marked 
If sent by mail, or hand-delivered, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in 
a sealed package, clearly marked on the outside of the package with the 
Invitation to bid number and addressed to: 
 
Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer  
Jasper County Government 
358 Third Avenue, Suite 304 
P O Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov 
 
4.  Legal Name and Signature 
Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of 
the bidder.  Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of 
the signer on the Affidavit of Compliance page.  The signer shall have the 
authority to bid on behalf of the company with regard to the submitted Bid.  
Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the bid and it shall not be 
considered for award. 

5.  Clarification and Addenda 
Each bidder shall examine Invitation to bid documents.  The Procurement 
Officer shall not be responsible for interpretations or clarifications of Equipment 
Specifications.  

Any inquiries or suggestions, concerning interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information pertaining to the Equipment Specifications shall be 
made through the Airport Manager in writing or through email to: 
 
Danny Lucas 
Director, Development Services Division  
Airport Manager 
Ridgeland – Claude Dean Airport 
SkyBlue Aviation 
P.O. Box 653 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
dlucas@jaspercountysc.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:dlucas@jaspercountysc.gov


 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 3 
 

 
Any inquiries or suggestions, concerning clarification of the Invitation to bid 
(excluding Equipment Specifications) shall be made through the Procurement 
Officer in writing or through email to: 
 
Kimberly Burgess 
Procurement Officer 
Director, Administrative Services Division 
P.O. Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov 
 
6.  Reserved Rights 
Jasper County reserves the right to accept any or all bids submitted. 

7.  Applicable Law 
All applicable laws and regulations of the State of South Carolina and Jasper 
County procurement regulations will apply to any resulting agreement, 
contract, or purchase.   

8.  Right to Protest 
Appeals and remedies are provided for in the Jasper County procurement 
regulations.  

9. Contract Forms 
Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a 
Bid shall be on forms either supplied by or approved by the Jasper County 
Procurement Officer. 

10. Liability and Indemnity 
The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Jasper County, its 
elected and appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and 
all liability, suits, damages, costs (including attorney fees), losses, etc. from 
claims caused by, or arising out of, or connected with, subsequent contract, 
including, but not limited to claims for personal injuries, death, property 
damage, or for damages from the award of this contract to Contractor. 

 
11. Forms, Alternates, Variances 
Bids must be submitted on the attached Invitation to Bid forms, although 
additional information may be attached.  Bidders must indicate any variance 
from the requested equipment specifications and/or terms and conditions, on 
the IFB Affidavit of Compliance.  Otherwise, bidders must fully comply with the 
requested equipment specifications, terms, and conditions.  Alternate Bids may 
or may not be considered at the sole discretion of Jasper County. 

mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov


 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 4 
 

 

12. Bid Prices 
Provide both unit price and extended total.  Price must be stated in units of 
quantity specified in the bidding specifications.  In case of discrepancy in 
computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid shall govern.  All 
prices shall be Freight on Board (F.O.B.) Destination.   

 

13. Descriptive Information   
All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered 
by this Invitation to bid are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose 
intended.  Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison 
purposes only.  Bdderes may not submit Bids on items manufactured by other 
than the manufacturer specified except when an “or equal” is stated. 

 

14. Quality 
If any equipment delivered does not meet applicable specifications, or if the 
equipment will not produce the performance that the bidder represents to the 
County, the bidder shall retrieve the equipment from Jasper County at no 
expense.  Also, the bidder shall refund to the County any money which has 
been paid for same.  The bidder shall be responsible for attorney fees in the 
event the bidder defaults and court action are required. 

The County reserves the right to reject any or all materials/equipment if, in its 
judgement, the item reflects unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or 
shipping damages. 

 

15. Regulations 
It shall be the responsibility of the bidder to assure compliance with Federal, 
State of South Carolina, and County rules, regulations, or other requirements, 
as may apply.  It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to locate all utility 
lines, etc. prior to excavating or executing a directional bore, etc. 

 

16. Bid Tabulation 
Bidders may request a copy of the bid tabulation of the Invitation to bid. 

 
 

III. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Payment 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 5 
 

The Bidder shall clearly state any prompt payment discount and/or net 
payment terms in the space provided on the Bid Form or Proposal page.  If this 
section is not completed, the County will assume terms are Net 30 calendar 
days after delivery and County’s acceptance of equipment which are the 
County’s standard payment terms.  Pre-payment and Cash On Delivery (COD) 
Terms are not acceptable. 
 

2. Exceptions to Specification 
Bidders taking exception to any part or section of the specifications shall 
indicate such exceptions on the Affidavit of Compliance Form and continuation 
page(s), if necessary.  Failure to indicate exceptions shall be interpreted as the 
bidder’s intent to fully comply with the specifications as written. 
 

3. Bid Award 
Any Purchase Order or Purchase Sales Agreement resulting from this Invitation 
to bid shall be awarded in response to a bid to Jasper County, South Carolina, 
received by the aforementioned deadline. 
 

4. Product Liability Insurance 
The successful bidder shall supply proof of Commercial General Liability 
insurance and/or proof of product liability insurance acceptable to Jasper 
County.  Insurance requirements are as follows: 
 
Insurance Requirements: 
The Bidder shall provide, prior to commencing work, a certificate of liability insurance as 
evidence of the following insurance requirements: 

 
a. Workers' Compensation - The vendor shall provide coverage for its employees with statutory 

workers' compensation limits, and no less than $1,000,000.00 for Employers' Liability. Said 
coverage shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the OWNER and its agents, employees, 
and officials. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability - The vendor shall provide coverage for all operations 

including, but not limited to Contractual, Products and Completed Operations, and Personal 
Injury. The limits shall be no less than $ I,000,000.00, per occurrence, with a $2,000,000.00 
aggregate. 

 
c. Business Automobile Liability - The vendor shall provide coverage for all owned, non- 

owned and hired vehicles with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00, per occurrence, 
Combined Single Limits (CSL) or its equivalent. 

 
 
 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 6 
 

 

IV. EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS  

Airport Fuel Farm Directional Bore  

See attached General Conditions, Equipment Specifications, and Bid Form for detailed 
Information. 

Delivery: F.O.B. Destination 

The materials, supplies, equipment to be specified within this document shall be 
delivered all transportation charges paid by the bidder to destination. 

Directional Bore approximately 625 feet from Grays Highway (U.S. 278) West to the 
location of the airport fuel farm located at Ridgeland – Claude Dean Airport. 

Minimum 13 x 24 x 12 Bulk Vault with Lid 

2” Pipe Conduit 

Line Locate 

Switch Gear 

Other miscellaneous materials, supplies, equipment, parts, services as specified by the 
Airport Electrical Engineer, Mark Morley, The Ohmega  Group, Inc. 

Labor 

Rental Equipment 

 
 

 

 

  



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 7 
 

BID FORM  

 

SUBMITTED BY ____________________________________________________ 
     Company Name 
 
In accordance with the above stated Invitation to Bid (IVTB #2024-16), the 
undersigned hereby declares that they have examined the Invitation to bid documents 
and specifications for the item(s) below. 
 
The undersigned proposes and agrees, if their Bid is accepted to furnish the item(s) 
submitted below, including delivery products/services information submitted. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

1 each  

 

Vehicle in accordance with  
Specifications in this bid document. 

Airport Fuel Farm Directional Bore  

 

Unit Complete, Delivered FOB Ridgeland, SC 

 

Delivery: ____________ calendar days after receipt 

of order.  

 

Shall Warranty the above   

 

Labor and travel for ____________ 

 

 

 

 

 

$______________________ 

 

 

DELIVERY F.O.B. DESTINATION 

 

Prompt Payment Discount _____________% ____________Days, Net _________Days  

 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 8 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE 

To be submitted with vendor’s Bid 

__________We Do Not take exception to the IVTB Documents/Requirements. 

__________We take exception to the IVTB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

Specific exceptions are as follows: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

I have carefully examined the invitation to bid and agree to abide by all submitted 

pricing, delivery, terms and conditions of this Bid unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Company Name _________________________________________________________________ 

By _______________________________________________ 

         (Authorized Signature) 

 

__________________________________________________ 

                   (Print Name and Title) 

 

Company Address __________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

RETURN THIS PAGE 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 9 
 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE (continued) 

 

Telephone Number ______________________________________ 

Email _______________________________________________________________ 

Federal Tax ID No. ___________________________________________________ 

DBE Vendor (Yes/No) Minority Owned: _______ 

    Women Owned:  _______ 

    Veteran Owned: _______ 

 

Date______________________________ 

 

ADDENDA 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. _________ 

Addendum No. _________ 

Addendum No. _________ 

Addendum No. _________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN THIS PAGE 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID #2024 – 17 
FUEL FARM DIRECTIONAL BORE 

IVTB #2024-17 
 

Page | 10 
 

STATEMENT OF “NO BID” 

Return this page only if your company provides the products/services being bid 
and DECLINES to do so. 

We, the undersigned, have declined to bid on the above Invitation to Bid for Airport 
Fuel Farm Directional Bore for the following reasons: 

 

_________ Specifications too “Narrow”, geared to one brand or manufacturer. 

  (Please explain below). 

_________ Insufficient Time to Respond to Invitation to Bid 

_________ Unable to Meet Specifications 

_________ Specifications Unclear (Please explain below) 

_________ Other (Please explain below) 

 

Remarks ________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Company Name _________________________________________________________________ 

Address _________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature and Title ______________________________________________________________ 

Telephone Number ___________________________________ 

Date ____________________________ 

 

 



 
 

Minutes  
03.18.2024 

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

    Monday, March 18, 2024 

 

 Budget Workshop: 
 
Review of the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Schedule – Kimberly Burgess 
 

Ms. Burgess was present to give a review of the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Schedule to the Council. She noted 
that 05.06.2024 would be the first reading of the budget; she noted the school district was set for the 
05.06.2024 meeting and possibly the 05.20.2024 meeting; 05.20.2024 would be the public hearing and 
second reading of the ordinance and on 06.03.2024 if all went as planned this would be the final reading of 
the budget ordinance.  
 

Jasper County Neighbors United – Tedd Moyd  
 
Mr. Tedd Moyd of Jasper County Neighbors United was present to discuss their budget requests with 
Council. Mr. Moyd noted that they were embarking on new ventures and discussed some of that 
information with Council.  He said that JCNU is becoming sustainable and self-sufficient.  He discussed their 
budget request amount with the Council and noted their plans for the use of the funds. 
 
Jasper County Council on Aging – Lila Resh  
 
Ms. Lila Resh, Mr. Rochester and Mr. Newton of the Jasper County Council on Aging was present to discuss 
their budget requests with the Council. They discussed their mission and what they provide to the citizens 
of Jasper County. They discussed their funding sources and the number of clients they had serviced. 
 
Officials Present: Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins, and Councilman  
John Kemp.  Absent: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Councilman Coy Garbade 
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney   
David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Chief Russell Wells, Danny Lucas and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
Call to Order:  
Vice Chairwoman Clark meeting to order as soon as the Workshop was over. The Report of Compliance 
with the Freedom of Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom 
of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and 
persons requesting notification. 



 
 

Minutes  
03.18.2024 

 

 2.         Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

   (2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     
                purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
                pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
                privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
                situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – Tax Map # 063-26-14-001 

   and Map # 063-26-14-002; Consideration of just compensation for I95 widening property     
   request by SCDOT; Parks and Recreation Master Plan Proposals; Airport matters-Heddings    
   Lawsuit   

                  
    (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
    of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
    the area served by a public body – Prospect Update; Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement Assignment      
 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. 
 
Motion to go into Executive Session:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
Return to Open Session: 

 
Motion to return to Regular Session:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
   

o Action coming out of Executive Session:  There were no motions coming from Executive Session.    
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation: The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by 
Councilman Adkins. 
 
5.  Approval of the Consent Agenda Items: 
 
Councilman Kemp noted that the Consent Agenda needed to be amended to include the 02.05.2024 Minutes 
that was left off the agenda but were included in their packets. 
 
 



 
 

Minutes  
03.18.2024 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the noted change:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins    
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
6.  Approval of Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve the agenda:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7.  Brenda Dooley, CEO - Habitat for Humanity of the Lowcountry 
 
Ms. Dooley was present to make a presentation on behalf of Habitat for Humanity of the Lowcountry. 
Information was passed out to Council, and she noted the 4 components of Habitats Homeownership 
Program:  Land, Families; Volunteers and Donors. She noted that they have built 14 homes in 2 locations. 
She discussed their process noting they aren’t a quick fix but rather a long-term solution. She discussed 
their process and their recent accomplishments in Jasper County.     
 
8.  Chief Russell Wells – Initial Quarterly Report on the IGA with City of Hardeeville for Emergency 
Transport / Ambulance Services. 
 
Chief Wells gave an initial quarterly report on the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the City of 
Hardeeville for Emergency Transport and Ambulance Services.  He discussed the data analysis of the calls 
that were dispatched and responses.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
9.  None 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
10.  None 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 
 

Minutes  
03.18.2024 

 

11.  Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person 
at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 
Mary Solomon discussed a new development on Bees Creek Road and wanted to know where the water 
would off load to. 
Coroner Willie Aiken discussed the Coroner position and his concerns for his department. 
Susan Campbell did not speak as she thought this was a sign in sheet to attend the meeting. 
Valerie Guzman spoke on the Special Audit. 
Lance Stemple did not speak as he thought this was a sign in sheet to attend the meeting.   
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
12.  Administrator’s Report - Mr. Fulghum reviewed the information from his report. There were no Action 
Items requiring a vote from the Council in the Administrator’s Report.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________  
13.  John Wall – Approval of the  3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2024-04  Authorizing The Execution 
And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes And Incentive Agreement By And Among n 
Jasper County, South Carolina And Master Steel LLC, for an Economic Development formerly 
known as ”Project Install” To Provide For Payment Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Taxes; Approving The 
Creation Of A Multicounty Park With Hampton County, South Carolina; Authorizing The 
Execution And Delivery Of A Multicounty Park Agreement By And Between Jasper County, South 
Carolina And Hampton County, South Carolina; Authorizing Certain Infrastructure Credits And; 
And Other Related Matters. (Project Install) (1st reading 02.05.2024; public hearing and 2nd 
reading 03.04.2024) 
 
14.  David Tedder – Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2024-05 Extending a Temporary 
Moratorium on Applications, Administrative Processing and Permitting for Approval of Large 
Residential Subdivisions, Major Subdivisions, Commercial Development Projects and Signage Within 
the Euhaw Broad River Planning Area and Matters Related Thereto. (Moratorium) (1st reading 
02.26.2024; public hearing and 2nd reading 03.04.2024)  

15. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the recommendation of the bid proposals for Robertville 
Community Center Roof Replacement Phase 2.  

16. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the recommendation of the Accommodation Tax Advisory 
Committee Members for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

17.  Danny Lucas – Ratifying Approval of the Parks & Recreation Master Plan RFP Recommendation to 
include inadvertently omitted written staff recommendation. (Approved at the 03.04.2024 meeting) 

18.  Approval of the Minutes 01.25.2024 and 02.05.2024 



 
 

Minutes  
03.18.2024 

 

  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
19.  Council Members Comments: Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments 
that required action. 

 
20.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II.  There was no need to return to the Executive Session for this meeting. For additional  
information on this meeting please visit our website for this meeting’s agenda E-Packet or for the video go 
to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 
 
Adjournment 
 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned at 7:12PM 

 
 
  Respectfully submitted:      
    
        
  _______________________________________ 
  Wanda H. Giles 
  Clerk to Council         
                                                                                                        _______________________________________   
           Barbara B. Clark, 

                                                                                               Vice Chairwoman                             
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA



	4d25d5fc-4fcf-4317-9754-069a22d1a203.pdf
	Agenda and Draft Minutes for Committee 04.17.2024
	Minutes 4.11.2023 Draft
	ADPB47B.tmp
	JASPER COUNTY ACCOMMODATIONS TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE


	Gopher Hill Festival A-Tax Application FY 24-25 (Local & State)
	Jasper Jamboree A-Tax Application FY 24-25 (State)
	Jasper Chamber Visitors Center A-Tax Application FY 24-25 (State)
	Morris Center for Lowcountry Heritage A-Tax Application FY 24-25 (State)
	Binder3.pdf
	FY2024-25 A-Tax Application_State_MCLH.pdf
	FY 2024-2025 Programs.pdf
	FY 2024-25 Programs

	MCLH 2024-25 Marketing Scope_Apr24.pdf
	FY2024-25 Jasper County A-Tax State Budget.pdf
	Sheet1

	2023 Financials_MCLH.pdf
	2023 StatementofActivity_MCLH.pdf
	2023 StatementofFinancialPosition_MLCH.pdf

	Project Success Appendix E.pdf
	Budgets_MCLH.pdf
	2023 MCLH Budget.pdf
	2024 MCLH Budget.pdf


	Binder4.pdf
	FY2023-24 Jasper County A-Tax STATE Statement of Activity Report.pdf
	FY2023-24 Jasper County A-Tax Transaction Report.pdf


	Point South Electric & Billboard A-Tax Application FY 24-25 (State) (2)
	SC Lowcountry Tourism Promotion of JC & the Lowcountry A-Tax Application FY 24-25 (State)
	STATE A-TAX FY24 - 25.pdf
	Sheet1


	e76e8868-afa6-4473-85f0-f49e467a649f.pdf
	LOCAL ATAX & HTAX BUDGET FY24-25.pdf
	FY22-23


	fb9f9755-a98d-48ef-a788-5fd74d719bcb.pdf
	24b130b6-770a-4230-b0d5-6be5b44f0792.pdf
	CO#1
	CO-1-Qtys
	5c5fdee2-51f8-49e1-ae76-fdbb64462e5b.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1.01


	9b97ee81-1c51-41d3-8b25-a5f2005d37c2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	G1.01





